# CHARACTERISTICS OF FISH POPULATIONS IN UPPER MISSISSIPPI RIVER BACKWATER AREAS

Marine Biological Laboratory LIBRARY SEP 2 0 1965

.

WOODS HOLE, MASS.



UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR FISH AND WILDLIFE SERVICE BUREAU OF SPORT FISHERIES AND WILDLIFE Circular 212 The United States Department of the Interior, created in 1849, is concerned with management, conservation, and development of the Nation's water, wildlife, fish, mineral, forest, and park and recreational resources. It has major responsibilities also for Indian and Territorial affairs.

As America's principal conservation agency, the Department works to assure that nonrenewable resources are developed and used wisely, that park and recreational resources are conserved for the future, and that renewable resources make their full contribution to the progress, prosperity, and security of the United States, now and in the future. UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR, STEWART L. UDALL, SECRETARY Stanly A. Cain, Assistant Secretary for Fish and Wildlife Fish and Wildlife Service, Clarence F. Pautzke, Commissioner Bureau of Sport Fisheries and Wildlife, John S. Gottschalk, Director

## CHARACTERISTICS OF FISH POPULATIONS IN UPPER MISSISSIPPI RIVER BACKWATER AREAS

Ву

Lyle M. Christenson, Chief Fishery Biologist Wisconsin Conservation Department, Research and Planning Division Madison, Wisconsin

and

Lloyd L. Smith, Department of Entomology, Fisheries, and Wildlife University of Minnesota, St. Paul, Minnesota



### CONTENTS

Pa	g	e
	~	-

Introduction	1
Decaviption of backwater areas	1
	2
	2
Areas A and B	2
Methods and materials	5
Toxicant application	5
Fish collection	5
Weight and species composition of the fish populations	6
Reliability of estimates	6
Standing crops	9
Miller Lake	9
Area A	6
Area B	6
Fluctuations in standing crops of area B	.6
Percentage composition	6
Weight per acre	6
Comparison with other waters	20
Mississippi River backwaters	20
Inland waters of adjacent States	0
Size and age-group composition of population in a rea B 1948-1949	21
Size and age structure	
Predators	) 1
Bowfing	) 1
Shorthose gar	
	11
	11
	21
	11
Sauger	20
Walleye	20
Pantish	26
Bluegill	26
Black crappie	26
White crappie	27
White bass	27
Yellow perch	28
Catflsh	28
Channel catfish	28
Flathead catfish	28
Black bullhead	30
Forage fish	30
Gizzard shad	36
Rough fish	3(
Carp	3()
Spotted sucker	30
Freshwater drum	30
Northern river carpsucker	30

## CONTENTS (continued)

### Page

Northern redhorse	0
Bigmouth buffalo	0
Smallmouth buffalo	0
Comparison with other Mississippi River areas	0
argemouth bass 3	4
Bluegill	4
Black crappie	4
White crappie	4
General consideration of age structure	4
Growth rates of fish 3.	4
Miller Lake	5
Areas A and B	5
Bluegill	6
Black crappie	6
White crappie	8
Largemouth bass 3	8
Sauger 33	8
Cam	8
Spotted cucker 20	Q
E reshwater drum	
White bace	a
Volley perch	7
	1
Bigmouth bullalo.	J
Smallmouth buffalo	J
Orangespotted sunfish	J
Comparison of growth in areas A and B and Illinois waters of the	
Mississippi River	)
General consideration of growth	1
Factors influencing productivity and population development	1
Water and soil fertility	2
Water fertility	2
Bottom soils	2
Food availability	2
Species composition	5
Water-level fluctuation	5
Summary and conclusions	5
Acknowledgments	)
References	)

## CHARACTERISTICS OF FISH POPULATIONS IN UPPER MISSISSIPPI RIVER BACKWATER AREAS

By

Lyle M. Christenson

and

Lloyd L. Smith

#### ABSTRACT

Standing crops of fish and their fluctuations from year to year, age and size class structure of the populations, and growth rates of the common species present in three backwater areas of the upper Mississippi River were determined during the period 1947-52 under the auspices of the Upper Mississippi River Conservation Committee.

Standing crops as estimated from six collections following rotenone treatment of blocked-off areas ranged from 39 to 605 and averaged 248 pounds per acre.

Weight composition by species groups varied greatly among four collections made in one study area but was characterized by the following percentages: (1) Rough fish - 38 (2) Non-game predaceous species - 27 (3) Panfish - 13 (4) Game fish - 12 (5) Catfish - 11, and (6) Forage fish - 1. Among the same four collections, the average composition in pounds per acre was: (1) Rough fish - 112 (2) Non-game predaceous species -77 (3) Panfish - 30 (4) Game fish - 29 (5) Catfish - 30, and (6) Forage fish - 2.

Very few fish over 5 years of age were found and most of the game fish and parifish were less than 3 years old.

Growth rates of most species were greater than most of those described in other waters of the north central States and in downstream areas of the Mississippi River.

Limited data on environmental factors are presented. Differences in standing crop and species composition could not be related to changes in the water level.

#### INTRODUCTION

Numerous attempts to remove fish popunations in order to determine the productivity and population structure of various landlocked waters have been made, but most were conducted where populations were abnormal and consequently the findings were not typical of normal conditions (Solman <u>50<sup>1</sup>/</u>). Many of them were only partially successful because recoveries of fish were incomplete. Until the research program of the Tennessee Valley Authority was initiated, little attention had been given to detailed studies of warm-water fish populations of backwater areas in riverc and impoundments. Surber (52, 54) studied the fish populations in some upper Mississippi River sloughs before installation of navigation dams; many of the conditions he described still exist. Mechean (32) attempted to show the

1 Underscored figures in parentheses refer to list of references beginning on page 50.

relation of scale structure to the life history of the bluegill in some upper Mississippi River sloughs. Tarzwell (57, 58) and Eschmeyer (19), employing a technique similar to that used in these studies, obtained information on fish populations in restricted areas of TVA reservoirs.

The studies discussed here were initiated primarily to evaluate the standing fish populations of representative backwater areas created by the navigation dams on the upper Mississippi River. At normal pool levels these areas are connected with the main and side channels and form an important part of the total fish-producing waters.

Collection of data on fish populations in the backwaters has been an integral part of a broad fishery investigation carried on by the Upper Mississippi River Conservation Committee $\frac{2}{}$  since its beginning. Under auspices of this organization the populations of seven backwater areas in the upper river were studied. The present discussion is limited to three areas in the Minnesota-Wisconsin section of the river: Miller Lake, area A, and area B. Collections were made by means of toxicants in Miller Lake in August 1957, in area A in July 1948, and in area B in July 1948, August 1949 and 1951, and September 1952. The objectives of the study were to determine (1) fish productivity, (2) fluctuations in the populations from year to year, (3) population structure, (4) rate of growth of the common species present, and (5) effects of navigation-pool drawdowns on the fish populations of these backwater areas.

#### Description of the backwater areas

Miller Lake:--Miller Lake<sup>3/</sup>, a backwater area in pool 8 of the upper Mississippi River lock and dam system, is located approximately 2 miles below the interstate bridge at La Crosse, Wisconsin, on the Wisconsin side of the river (fig. 1). On August 15, 1947, the date of fish collection, it covered an area of 11.9 acres<sup>4/</sup>. The water level at the pool-control point approximately 1 mile below La Crosse was 630.97 feet (elevation above mean sea level). The normal level at this gauge is 631.00 feet.

. Two outlets connect the lake indirectly with the main channel. One, appriximately 70 feet wide and 5 feet deep, empties into a large running stagh. The other, approximately 15 feet wide, drains into a shallow ditch that has no appreciable current at normal pool letel. There is a single inlet less than 3 feet in maximum width which is very shallow and choked with weeds. The amount of water entering the backwater from this source is negligible. Silt deposited periodically during high water stages forms the bottom.

A heavy growth of coontail, <u>Ceratophyllum</u> demersum, was on the periphery of the lake and in the bays at the time of poisoning. The water temperature 1 foot below the surface was 80°F. and the turbidity was 320 ppm as measured with a U.S. Geological Survey standard platinum needle scale.

Areas A and B:--Areas A and B lie west of Fountain City, Wisconsin, in pool number 5-A (fig. 2). The main channel of the river

2/ The Upper Mississippi River Conservation Committee was organized in 1943. It is composed of representatives from Minnesota, Wisconsin, Iowa, Illinois, Missouri, the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, and the U.S. Corps of Engineers. The primary purpose of the Committee is to conduct biological and economic studies concerning fish and wildlife of the upper Mississippi River.

3/ Descriptive information and raw data pertaining to Miller Lake are from a preliminary report (unpublished) prepared by D.W. Kelley and John Greenbank, parts of which appeared in the Fourth Progress Report of the Technical Committee for Fisheries of the Upper Mississippi River Conservation Committee, January 27, 1948.

U/ Original determinations of areas of Miller Lake, area A and area B, and of area B in 1951 were made from plane-table maps. Acreages of area B for the years 1949 and 1952 are estimates based on the original maps.



Figure 1:--Mississippi River approximately 2 miles south of La Crosse. Misconsin, Mill r Lake is indicated by a line near the center of the photograph (aerial photo fakon July 20. 1917).

follows the east bank of the valley proper at this location. West of the main channel the broad river bottoms are dissected by lesser meandering channels and it is in this region that the two sampling areas are located. Normal level of the pool at the U. S. Corps of Engineers Fountain City boatyard gauge is 650.50 feet.

Area A covered 1.35 acres on July 6, 1948. It had a maximum depth of 4.5 feet and an average depth of 2.4 feet with a water level of 650.61 feet at the Fountain City gauge. The bottom was silt and except for a heavy stand of <u>Sagittaria</u> sp. at the closed end of the backwater, aquatic vegetation was sparse. Area B covered 3.36 acres on July 7, 1948 (fig. 3). It had a maximum depth of 9 feet and an average depth of 5.5 feet when the water level at the Fountain City gauge was 650.65. The silt bottom supported a more diversified and abundant stand of aquatic vegetation than was found in area A. Sagittaria sp. predominated, Potamogeton natans was abundant, and there was a scattering of Vallianeria sp. and Nymphaca tuberosa.

Water temperature and turbidity were not determined in areas A and B on these dates but maximum air temperature at Winona, Minnesota, 6 miles downstream, on both dates was 96 F. The water in both cases was clear enough to permit the bottom to be seen to depths of approximately 3 feet.



Figure 2:--Mississippi River in vicinity of Fountain City, Wisconsin. Areas A and B are indicated by letters. Direction of river flow in this photograph is from bottom to top (aerial photograph taken July 21, 1051).



Figure 3: -Outline map of area B in 1948. The shaded area indicates the extent of sand deposition noted in 1951.

On August 3, 1949, the water level at the gauge stood at 649.65, 1.00 feet lower than on the date of the previous operation. This change reduced the size of area B to approximately 3 acres, the maximum depth to 8.0 feet, and the average depth to 4.0 feet. Neither water temperature nor turbidity was determined. The water was clear enough to permit the bottom to be seen over a major portion of the area.

On August 14, 1951, the water level stood at 650.18, 0.53 feet above that of August 3, 1949, and 0.47 feet below that of July 7, 1948. Deposition of sand had filled one small bay and. together with the lower water level, had reduced the area to 3.1 acres. The maximum depth was 7.5 feet and the average depth approximated 4 feet. Surface water temperature at noon was 73° F. and the silt bottom was visible to a depth of approximately 2 feet. Aquatic vegetation, identified by John Moyle of the Minnesota Department of Conservation was much more abundant than in July, 1948. The following species were present: mud plantain (Heteranthera dubia), coontail (Ceratophyllum demersum), western waterweed (Anacharis occidentalis), arrowhead (Sagittaria sp.), sago pondweed (Potamogeton pectinatus), duckweeds (Lemna minor, Spirodela polyrhiza), wild celery (Vallisneria americana), white waterlily (Nymphaea tuberosa), and river pondweed (Potamogeton nodosus). Coontail was the most abundant species, followed by western waterweed and mud plantain. Arrowhead was abundant only at the closed end of the area.

On September 17, 1952, the water level was 649.90 feet, 0.28 feet below that of August 14, 1951, 0.25 feet above that of August 3, 1949, and 0.75 feet below that of July 7, 1948. On the basis of previous plane table compatations, the size of area B was estimated to be approximately 3.0 acres. The maximum and average depths were 7.5 and approximately 4 feet, respectively. Surface-water temperature at noon was 65° F. Bottom, turbidity, and vegetation were similar to those existing on the date of the preceding operation, August 14, 1951.

#### METHODS AND MATERIALS

#### Toxicant application

The methods of applying the fish toxicant followed in each of the six operations were nearly identical. A 0.75-inch (stretch measure) mesh seine was installed across the open end of each area and the toxicant was then distributed. The seine was laid out early in the morning in 1948 and 1949, in mid-afternoon on the day prior to poisoning in 1951, and at noon in 1952. The corresponding time for the Miller Lake operation in 1947 is unknown. Diluted toxicant was poured over the side of moving boats powered by outboard motors. During application the areas were repeatedly traversed. Dispersion of the poison in weedbeds and shallow portions was accomplished with hand scoops or portable hand-operated pumps. Rowdered derris root warranted 5 percent rotenone (4.5 percent in Miller Lake) was used in the first four operations and emulsified rotenone was applied to area B in 1951 and 1952. The concentration of toxicant in all cases was 0.50-0.75 ppm.

#### Fish collection

During the 3 days following application of the toxicant in areas A and B, as many fish as possible were picked up and the small numbers of those remaining were estimated. In Miller Lake an attempt was made to collect all fish except forage species, some young-of-the-year largemouth bass, some yellow perch, and lesser sunfishes and bluegills, under 3.5 inches in length. The estimated members of observed unrecovered fish, primarily of age group 0, in all operations except area B, 1952, were assigned a total weight on the basis of those actually recovered an: weighed. In area B the 1952 collection of forage fish and young-of-theyear specimens was considered to be of little utility because a large quantity of small fish was taken by gulls and terns.

In all operations total length of fish (length from anterior tip of snout to the extreme end of the caudal fin with the lobes compressed) was recorded to the nearest 0.1 inch and weight to the nearest 0.05 pound. General scale samples were taken from areas of the bodies of the various species in accordance with Smith (48). Only length and weight determinations were made of the bowfin, northern longnose gar, shortnose gar, channel catfish, flathead catfish, bullheads, and paddlefish.

Up to 100 scale samples per species were taken in Miller Lake. Additional length measurements, up to approximately 500 for one species, were recorded for the most abundantly represented species. The remaining fish were counted and weighed in bulk. Total number and total weight of all forage fish were estimated. Total lengths and weights were recorded for all fish from area A and from area B in 1948, 1951, and 1952 except young-of-the-year specimens and forage fish for which only numbers and bulk weight were noted. Up to 50 scale samples were collected from each species of importance except as indicated above. In a rea B, during the 1949 operation, 50 scale samples were taken from most species and an additional 50 length measurements were made if enough fish were available. The remaining fish were counted and weighed collectively by species.

In addition to the fish collected, the numbers of unrecovered small specimens of some species were estimated and assigned a total weight on the basis of recovered samples in the respective size classes.

#### WEIGHT AND SPECIES COMPOSITION OF THE FISH POPULATIONS

In an analysis of a fishery the determination of the capability of a water to produce fish is of primary importance. The term "fish production" has been employed in the literature to convey two different meanings: 1) the surplus of fish available for harvest in any period, and 2) the total fish population present at any one time. In this study the term is used in the latter sense only. Fish production, or standing crop, is considered here in terms of pounds of fish per acre with discussions of size and age-group composition presented in a later section. The list of fish species intable 1 is complete for the 1948 and 1949 collections in area B but omits the "forage fish" group in the other studies.

The broad nature of the present studies suggested the grouping of all species under six classifications (predators, game fish, pantish, catfish, rough fish, and forage fish) following the precedent established by the Technical Committee for Fisheries of the Upper Mississippi River Conservation Committee in its preliminary reports on other backwater populations (Upper Mississippi River Conservation Committee, <u>63</u>, <u>64</u>). Barnickol and Starrett(<u>3</u>) employed grouping of a similar type but pointed out certain inadequacies of the arrangement.

#### Reliability of estimates

Consideration was given to the efficiency of the toxicant application and fish collection in area B during 1951. Sixteen fin-clipped fish with a minimum length of approximately 6 inches and representing eight species were released prior to application of the toxicant. In addition, one spotted sucker was placed in a wire cage and lowered to the bottom at the deepest point in the area. A 0.25-inch-mesh seine 8 feet wide and 35 feet long was weighted on both the lead and float lines and laid flat on the bottom in the deepest water. On the day following the poisoning a 250-foot experimental gill net and a 1-inch bar mesh frame net with a 50-foot lead were set in the enclosed area.

The condition of the spotted sucker in the cage 3 hours after application of the poison had been completed indicated that death had occurred soon after the toxicant was placed in the water. All of the 16 marked fish were recovered and neither the gill net nor the frame net caught any fish. Only two trout-perch and two small gizzard shad were found in the seine which had been spread on the bottom. Minnows and young-ofthe=year crappies placed in a wire cage 56 hours after application of the toxicant showed immediate signs of distress and most of them died within 15 minutes. While individual checks on the efficiency of the toxicant application and fish collection were not conclusive because their scope was limited, as a group they indicated a complete kill and a recovery of fish approaching 100 percent by weight. Although no checks of this nature were made in the other studies, the procedures were similar and therefore it is probable that comparable efficiency was attained except in Miller Lake.

At Miller Lake the poisoning was preceded by netting, seining, and fin-clipping operations to check the relative efficiency of nets used in test netting operations. These activities were

	Miller	Area		Area B			
Species	Lake	A	1948	1949	1951	1952	
PREDATORS							
Shortnose gar Lepisosteus plato- stomus Rafinesque		X	X	X			
osseus oxyurus Rafinesque Bowfin Amia calva Linnaeus	X	X X	X X	X X	X X	X X	
GAME FISH							
Northern pike Esox lucius Lin- naeus	Х	Х	X	X	X	X	
Northern Largemouth bass Microp- terus salmoides salmoides (Lacepede)	X	X	Х	X	х	X	
Sauger - <u>Stizostedion canadense</u> (Smith)	X	Х	X	х	X	Х	
Walleye <u>Stizostedion</u> vitreum vitreum (Mitchill)	X		Х	Х	X	х	
PANFI SH							
White bass <u>Morone chrysops</u> (Rafinesque) Green sunfish Lepomis cyanellus		X	X	X		X	
Rafinesque Pumpkinseed — Lepomis gibbosus				X	Х	Χ	
(Linnaeus)	Χ		X	Χ	X	Х	
chirus macrochirus Rafinesque Orangespotted sunfish Lepomis	X	Х	Х	X	X	Х	
humilis (Girard) Northern rock bass Ambloplites	Х	X	Х	Х	Х	X	
rupestris rupestris (Rafinesque) White crappie Pomoxis annularis			Х		X		
Rafinesque Black crappie Pomoxis nigro-	Х	X	Х	X	X	X	
maculatus (LeSueur) Yellow perch Perca flavescens	X	X	Х	X	Х	X	
(Mitchill)	X		X	X	X	X	

Table 1:--Fish species taken from Miller Lake (1947), Area A (1948, and Area B (1948, 1949, 1951, and 1952).

	Miller	Area		Are	a B		
Species	Lake	A	1948	1949	1951	1952	
CATFISH							
Channel catfish Ictalurus lacustris lacustris (Walbaum)	X	X	X	X	X	X	
nebulosus nebulosus (LeSueur) Northern black bullhead Ameiurus	X	v	V	~	v	Y	
Yellow bullhead Ameiurus natalis (LeSueur)	X	Å	Å	A	A	A	
Flathead catfish <u>Pilodictis</u> <u>olivaris</u> (Rafinesque)			X			X	
ROUGH FISH							
Paddlefish Polyodon spathula (Walbaum) Mooneye Hiodon tergisus LeSueur . Biomouth Buffalo Ictiobus						X X	
cyprinellus (Valenciennes)		X	X	X			
bubalus (Rafinesque) Northern river carpsucker Carpi-	X			X			
odes carpio carpio (Rafinesque) . Northern redhorse Moxostoma		X	X		X	X	
aureolum (LeSueur) Spotted sucker - <u>Minytrema melanops</u>		X	X	X	X		
(Rafinesque) Carp Cyprinus carpio Linnaeus	X X	X	X X	X X	X X	X	
grunniens Rafinesque		X	X	X	X	X	
FORAGE FISH							
Cyprinidao Western golden shiner Notemi-							
(Rafinesque)	X		X	X	X	X	
emiliae Ray			X	X			
atherinoides acutus (Lapham)1/ Northern weed shiner - Notropis roseus richardsoni Hubbs and			X				
Greene			X	X			

Table 1 (continued)

1/ Not listed by Bailey (1951).

T	able	21	(con	clu	(beb.
---	------	----	------	-----	-------

	Miller Area		Area B			
Species	Lake	÷.	1948	1919	1951	1952
FORAGE FISH (continued)						
Constant da se						
Spottoil chizar Notropie						
mdsoring (Clipton)			х	Т		
Sootfin shiner Natronis				_		
spilopterus (Cope)			I	X		
Northern mimic shiner Notropis						
volncellus volucellus (Cope) .				I		
Bullhead minnow Pimephales						
perspicuus (Girard)				X		
Eluntacse minnow Pimephales			_			
notatus (Rafinesque)			X			
Northern fathead minnow						
Pimephales promelas promelas		-				
Hallnesque			<u>A</u>			
(I Summe)	Ŧ	T	Y	T	Y	T
Tednole madtor Schilbeodes mollis		-	44	216	_	-
(Hermann)	Ī	X	I	I	I	X
Trout-perch Percopsis omisco-						
mavcus (Walbaum)			I		X	I
Western pirate-perch Aphredoderus						
sayanus gibbosus LeSueur					I	
Northern brook silversides -						
Labidesthes sicculus sicculus						
(Cope)			A	Y		
Northern logperch - Percina			*			
Caproces semilasciate (Delay)		A	A	4		
ventral Johnny darter Stnees tona			T	T	T	
Mud darter Kthenstona astricenis			44	44	da	
(Forbes)		I	I	I		
Iowa darter - Etheostoma exile						
(Ginend)				T		

conducted within a 10-day period prior to installation of the block seine. Only 15.9 percent of the marked fish were recovered following application of the toxicant on August 16. Known netting mortality partially accounted for the low recovery of fin-clipped fish but in view of the evidence presented above for area B in 1951, it is likely that the activity preceding installation of the block seine was responsible for the egress of many fish. Since the value of these data is directly related to the extent of fish recovery, the use of the Miller Lake material here is limited.

#### Standing crops

Miller Lake:--At the time of collection the fish population of Miller Lake, exclusive of forage fish, was composed of 1° species (Table 1). Only three species in the foragefish group were identified although others were present. On the basis of both recovered<sup>5</sup> and estimated numbers and weights, Miller Lake produced 3, 795 fish and 153.5 pounds per acre (Table 2).

<sup>5</sup> The words "recover". "collect". etc. and their perivatives as subsequently employed refer to the total of fish actually recovered and estimated.

	Number		Wei	.ght
	Number	Percentage	Pounds	Percentage
Species	per	of total	per	of total
	acre	number	acre	weight
Pradators				
Bowfin	6.1	0.2	9.5	6.2
	6.1	0.2	9.5	6.2
Come fish				
Largemouth bass	19/1-6	5.1	9.9	6 1
Northern pike	26.3	0.7	16.9	11.0
Sauger	1.6		0.4	0.3
Walleye	1.4		0.4	0.2
	223.9	5.9	27.6	17.9
Panfish				
White bass	0.1			
Bluegill	1,216.1	32.0	63.8	41.5
Black crappie	40.8	1.1	4.1	2.7
White crappie	3.8	0.1	0.8	0.5
Yellow perch	468.3	12.3	6.6	4.3
Miscellaneous contrarchids /	42.0	1.1	1.7	1.1
0 H 01 N	1,771.2	46.6	77.0	50.1
Gatilsh	۲ B	0.2	2 8	7 8
Vollow bulbend		0.1	2.0	1.3
Chamel catfish	0.5		1.2	0.8
	10.7	0.3	6.0	3.9
Farana fish				
Giggand shad	1 260.5	33.2	25.2	16.h
Minnows	188.0	الملا	1.2	0.8
Madtom	336.1	8.8	1.7	1.1
	1,764.7	46.5	28.1	18.3
Rough figh				
Smallmouth buffalo	0.1			
Carp	0.2		0.1	0.1
Spotted sucker	21.4	0.6	5.5	3.6
	21.7	0.6	5.6	3.7
GRAND TOTAL	3,798.3		153.8	

Table 2:--Standing crop of fish in Miller Lake, August 15, 1957, expressed as number and pounds per acre of various species.

1/ Includes orangespotted sunfish and pumpkinseed.

Table 3:-Standing crop of fish in area A, July 6, 1948, expressed as number and pounds per acre of various species.

	Number		We	ight
	Number	Percentage	Pounds	Percentage
Species	per	of total	per	of total
	acre	number	acre	weight
Predators				
Bowfin	3.0	0.2	12.1	30.8
Northern longnose gar	0.7		0.1	0.1
Shortnose gar	23.7	1.5	1.9	12.4
U I	27.4	1.7	17.1	43.6
Game fich			r	
Largemouth base	27	0.0	0.1	
Northern rike	2+1	0.2	0.4	<b>T</b> • <b>T</b>
Smacr		0.6		
Wanger	11.8	0.0	<u> </u>	<u> </u>
	1400	0.0	<b>T • T</b>	3.0
Panfish				
White bass	77.0	<u>4.8</u>	0.1	0.l
Bluegill	94.8	5.9	2.1	5.3
Black crappie	33.3	2.1	2.8	7.1
White crapple	26.7	1.6	4.0	10.2
Miscellaneous centrarchids -/	290.4	18.0	0.9	2.3
Cattleb	522.2	32.3	9.9	25.3
Northern black hullbead	0.7			
Channel cetfish	2.2	0.1	1.7	12.0
	2.9	0.1	4.7	12.0
Forage fish	- 00 0		0.0	0.2
Gizzard shad	182.2	11.3	0.9	2.3
Minnows	170.4	10.5	0.4	0.9
Miscellaneous	20.1	<u> </u>		
	31903	23.4	ر ۲۰	2.4
Rough fish			-	
Bigmouth buffalo	0.7	CT0 400 440	0.2	0.6
Carp	647.4	40.0	1.7	4.3
Northern river carpsucker	0.7			
Northern redhorse	0.7		0.1	0.2
Freshwater drum	20.7	1.3	3.0	7.7
	670.2	41.5	5.0	12.8
GRAND TOTAL	1.617.0		39.1	ga an
GUMMD TOTAT ************	1001100		J/ • 1	

1/ Includes orangespotted sunfish and undetermined young-of-the-year Centrarchidae.

Į

	Num	ber	Weight		
	Number	Percentage	Poinds	Percentage	
Species	Der	of total	per	of total	
	acre	number	acre	weight	
		~ ~		0	
SCALE	0.3	U. L	1.50	-3.6	
Northern longnose gar	- + ×		0.3	0.1	
Shorthose gar	5.5	0.5	4.5	0.9	
	12.0	0.5	35+3	10.2	
Nama di sh					
	1.7.0		0.5	2	
Viewerszwer miljeg		0.1	27.5	10.0	
Carrier and a second and a se	0.2	0.3		0.7	
	2.7	0.1	5.5	0.3	
8 <u></u> _; <	103.7		2	11.2	
Fanfish				0.4	
ADIte DESE		-2-7	2	0.0	
	-7-+-	2.0	<b></b> .0	1.0	
Elack grappie	03019	10+1		1.0	
white prapple	02.9		Col	2.0	
Tellow perch	95+5	2.0	0.3	0.2	
Miscellaneous centrarchids=	_5.5	1.3	0	0,2	
Catflish	-, 7-10.3		10.6	( • <u>*</u>	
Northern black billhead	0.3				
Themmel catfist	13.7	0.4	13.3	8	
Tistrapi catfigh	0,6		2.9	1.3	
	1.5	Ū	21.2	9.7	
	=	- 2 2		0.7	
-112870 SA80	-2-06	-2+2		0.7	
W	0 + 0 1 - 6	22.0	-+	0.1	
Miscallane 7155	0,10	4+7	<u>Ve</u> 2		
	٥٠ ـــــروب	22.2	2+-	÷*2	
Renzh fist					
The second in the second secon	_0.2	1.2	5.7	2.6	
	32	7.5	9E.2	-5.3	
Noticet tivet campucker	3.0	0.1	2.3	0.5	
Viersion agricition	7.1	0.2	0.5	0.2	
Jun de Gran a Grande	5.7	0.2	5	2.1	
La Composita de montes este este este este este este este	-1.0	0.3	5.6	2.6	
Spotted Stores	392.3	11.5	115.1	53.4	

# Table \_:--Standing eror of fish in area 3. July 7, 1918, expressed as number and pounds per abre of various species.

2 Includes macton, trout-perch, carters, and silversides.

Table 5: -- Standing crop of fish in area 3. August 3, 1949, expressed as number and pounds per acre of various species.

	Number		Weight		
	Number	Percentage	Pounds	Percentage	
Species	per	of total	per	of total	
	acre	number	acre	weight	
Predators					
Bowfin	22.7	0.6	81.3	13.9	
Northern longnose gar	8.0	0.2	6.1	1.1	
Shortnose gar	19.7	0.1	26.7	1.1	
	50.4	1.2	117.4	19.4	
Game fish					
Largemouth hass	202 7	7 0	0.2	ר ב	
Northern nike	6 0	0.1	7+4	1+2	
Sources pire	6.0	0.1		<i>2.2</i>	
Wallere	2.7	0.2	1 + 1 4 n	0.3	
uarrele **********************************		7.4	<u>0.1</u>	<u> </u>	
	200.1	(•0	30.3	5+0	
Panfish					
White bass	4.0	0.1	1.9	0.3	
Bluegill	1,333.0	32.8	12.0	2.0	
Elack crappie	399.3	9.8	22.6	3.7	
White crappie	269.3	6.6	9.0	1.5	
Yellow perch	185.7	4.6	0.9	0.1	
Miscellaneous centrarchids 1/	175.7	4.3	0.3		
Catfish	2,367.0	58.2	46.5	7.6	
Northern black bullhead	1 0		0.0		
Channel catfich	12.2		0.3		
ONALLICE CAULEN	- 13.3	0.3	37.7	6.3	
	±4•Э	ر .0	30.0	0.3	
Forage fish					
Gizzard shad	336.3	8.3	150.8	25.9	
Minnows	796.0	19.6	1.0	0.2	
Miscellaneous=/	67.2	1.5	0.1		
	1,195.0	29.4	157.9	26.1	
Rough fish					
Bigmouth buffalo	6.3	0.2	7.9	1.3	
Smallmouth buffalo	2.7	0.1	2.4	0.4	
Carp	69.7	1.7	165.0	27.3	
Northern redhorse	0.3		3.0	0.1	
Freshwater drum	8.7	0.2	9.5	1.6	
Spotted sucker	37.7	0.9	29.2	4.8	
	125.4	3.1	214.8	35.5	
GRAND TOTAL	4,060.7		604.9		

1/ Includes orangespotted sunfish, green sunfish, and pumpkinseed.

2/ Includes madtom, darters, and brook silversides.

	Number		Wei	ight
	Number	Percentage	Pounds	Percentage
Species	per	of total	per	of total
	acre	number	acre	weight
Predators				
Bowfin	17.1	1.3	63.0	31 6
Longnose gar	3.2	0.3	0.2	0.1
Touleucoo Bar	20.3	1.6	64.1	31.7
Come fich				
Langementh bass	11.1 0	י בר	07	1, 8
Northern pike	21.5	10	201	12 0
NOT UTETTI PIRC	24.2	1.7	0.6	0.3
	27 1	21	3.6	1 8
Harrey Contraction Contraction	196.1	15.5	38.3	18.9
	2/012	-/•/	2002	1007
Panfish				
Bluegill	66.1	5.2	6.9	3.4
Black crappie	286.5	22.7	12.8	6.3
White crappie	55.5	4.4	14.0	7.0
Yellow perch	76.8	6.1	1.3	0.6
Miscellaneous centrarchids±/	70.6	5.6	0.9	0.4
0.4.01.2	<b>555</b> •5	44.1	35.9	17.7
Vatiish	0.2			
Northern black buildead	10.3	0.8	10 2	0.4
Unannel Catilsn	10.5	0.0	10 3	9.0
	10.0	0.0	170)	7.0
Forage fish				
Gizzard shad	60.0	4.8	0.7	0.3
Minnows	324.2	25.7	0.6	0.2
Miscellaneous <sup>_/</sup>	63.5	5.0	0.1	
	447.7	35.5	1.4	0.5
Rough fish				
Carp	0.3		1.4	0.7
Northern river carpsucker	3.5	0.3	3.6	1.8
Northern redhorse	0.3		0.9	0.4
Freshwater drum	1.3	0.1	1.5	0.7
Spotted sucker	24.8	2.0	36.1	17.9
	30.3	2.4	43.5	21.5
GRAND TOTAL	1.260.5		202 . li	
	_,/			

Table 6:--Standing crop of fish in area B, August 14, 1951, expressed as number and pounds per acre of various species.

1/ Includes orangespotted sunfish, green sunfish, pumpkinseeds, and rock bass.

2/ Includes madtom, darters, trout-perch, pirateperch, and brook silversides.

Speciles	Pounds per acre	Percentage of total weight
Predators Bowfin Northern longnose gar	90.7 0.3 91.0	33.3 0.1 33.4
Game fish Largemouth bass Northern pike Sauger Walleye	0.9 15.6 2.2 5.1 24.1	0.3 5.7 0.8 2.0 8.8
Panfish White bass Bluegill Black crappie White crappie Yellow perch	2.8 0.9 21.5 17.8 0.5 43.5	1.0 0.3 7.9 6.5 0.2 15.9
Catfish Northern black bullhead Channel catfish Flathead catfish	0.1 36.1 <u>3.5</u> 39.7	13.2 1.3 14.6
Forage fish Gizzard shad	0.7	0.2
Rough fish Carp Northern river carpsucker Freshwater drum Mooneye Paddlefish Spotted sucker	29.6 0.6 20.3 0.4 5.4 17.4	10.9 0.2 7.4 0.1 2.0 6.4
GRAND TOTAL	272.6	

## Table 7:--Standing crop of fish in area B, September 17, 1952, expressed as pounds per acre of various species.

Free - --- The fish population of a res wis composed to 12 loentified species Table and so eral values were incontified -> total to
 fish weighing 55 - pointes or - tot? Offse and A\* - pointes per abre was recompred Table
 Subjordeserborenistic of minimity's and small
 Subjordeserborenistic of minimity's and small
 panilish prevented estimation of minimity's and small

The prevance game has pandled outflag forage last and pungelist groups approximated nor 43 to 3.1 D5.3 L1 D 3 D and LD P percent respectively of the total vergen of all flag pollement. The species volume vers the most important in the passe of respect vers the portion splate volume transport inautotal fination splate volume transport inautotal portion splate and freenvaler inautonations grantert splate and freenvaler inautorespectively

Lines Burrie 1999 and 1999 collections in area Burchaned 29 and 27 species (respective) confidence were makes to locatify all species in 1991, and 1991. The standing drops in terms of points per some were 117 1, die 9, 101 - and 1711 - in 1999, under 1991, and 1951, respectal Turkes (1991, and 19

Lo all fold reads the orkin of the total black charmed defines and groupers which ever the threst undor them species of the totesteed be groups to the reads of veryon. The class and vide trappiles allottered between each as the most adminiation steel es in the panies groups and the trugt has group the veryon protocompaties on the spotted allotter exceeded them of the total of the

A THEFTHERE IN THE STEPLING OFFICE A FEE In the DE TREDEMILI IN THE THE OFFICE A THE MILLIN

#### Filosofias e tradicoj Istracio area B

 - mulai mar en no lo stancing con de loaceanen areste na a activitates en tre degraming d' me studo. Thi benefitti na stancastore of chaCurruanions population estimates were made for area 3 m the summers of 1948 (1949, 1931 and 1950). These four estimates varied from 100 w to 204 9 points per sore with an average of 904 3 points. The percentage composition of the population of species groups also varied bongics range.

Ferremage composition -- The percentage constant : weight the species proces and the set of the set the : Ep + Carrela erze treditors contributed Biberter mitelist ... bertert wenfet .1 perien inner liberten forgefist i persent and mar fire 25 persent. These pertextages are aceved in favor of the forage-Sal grout because there was a trentherance Start contract (+) has the this prover make in 1: percent of the total while the sterage of the other three reads was only . remen. The we soul place she wee in 1949 are excluded the average contributions time article priors were predentes IT perten mite ist literten ratist literten unite ...perten fingelist ...pertent and thus fish 18 percent. This are rage of the токлада на решетер за решатат таша бот LEATSING THE THE INTRODUCED THE LAS 

Telepin per sone ++The sverage standing ornos in species groups in the four population estimates expressed as pointed per sone verepredators. Toplands game fish, 14 pointes parlies for pointis datien 00 pointes forage fier 4: pointes and rough fish, 11 pointes Tame + day 5. The scenage weight of the forage field is near in influenced on the large periodicrom of solid gamears shad in 1944. Delemine of the weight of this species from the 1944 pointes are total standing proposities the all results in a total standing proposities the allerage standing completific rage field for all ears to 1 pointes per sore. It is suggested that

<sup>1</sup> Valent to guideant that other that pringti-tra-rear filst regarmless of state of maturity which could easily be setarated on the cargo of length framework.

Cete		.234					Intel
1177.111							
Friday the art			-	an an an-sh mar	-		
a departure o a a a		*			-		-one
		•	-	-	·		
Primes ter arre	alan An an ann Ann-alan	1	-				
Remainage total vergina Prints car acrea							-
			-		-		and the state
Anter age total verget	-	11			-		
Primas per sore	nas. Natificas				-		the same of the same
Persentage total select		4					
	-				-	*	* -
Perfentage total weight					4.4.4		
rollatet grange- Laguatet grange-		-	1		-		
Pertentage what weight			***				
		+	-	be	~	-	

1 Rightes are character to the heartest while matter,

1 Emissive of solid soliders sold to 1913.

3 less that 1,8 percent.

For collected in estimately only introduce object of those systematic recordened and the assesses of shift propert shap with strongly influenced the 1915 relations suggest an estimate province ing the of 1951 for the number of mentions the american epiconicating the of 1951 for

Bases in miletter stearners mily.



Figure 4:--Percentage composition by weight of the various species groups in the standing crops of area B in 1948, 1949, 1951, and 1952. The 1949-A and average-A columns include gizzard shad collected in 1949. The 1949-B and Average-B columns repreaent the adjusted percentage composition when adult gizzard shad are excluded.



Figure 5:--Standing crops of fish in area B in 1948. 1949, 1951. and 1952 expressed as pounds per acre of the various species groups. The 1949-A and Average-A columns include adult gizzard shad collected in 1949. The 1949-B and Average-B columns represent the adjusted standing crops when adult gizzard shad are excluded.

Tab :--Standing crops of species groups from northern and southern sections of the upper Mississippi River backwaters expressed as pounds per acre.

			Por	inds per	r acre		
nate:	Pred- ators	Game fish	Pan- fish	Cat- fish	Forage fish	Rough fish	Total
	17.1	1.1	9.9	4.7	1.3	5.0	39.1
Ares 1 -	77.0	29.0	36.0	30.0	L1.0	112.0	324.0
Miller Lake	9.5	27.6	77.0	5.0	28.1	5.5	153.8
Oquawka No. 1	5.1	2.7	10.5	59.8	81.2	210.5	390.52/
Oquawka No. 2	3.5	11.1	56.3	19.4	403.4	195.9	691.6
Savanna No. 1	17.7	2.2	21:.2	22.1	1.2	103.9	171.4
Savanna No. 2	16.7	11.1	17.L	26.9	12.1	205.4	422.8

Average of 4 years; figures are rounded to nearest pound.
 Includes 20.7 pounds per scre listed as "Miscellaneous".

#### Comparison with other waters

Valid comparison of standing crops may be difficult for several reasons: there may be different methods of procuring population data, e.g., poisoning and mark-recovery (Carlander, 12); there is a lack of estimates from representative waters (Solman, 50); the number of samples is insufficient; and some authors do not present data in a form from which comparable elements may be extracted. Swingle and Smith (56) pointed out that the weight of fish which can be produced in a particular water varies with the species and therefore that when productivity is compared, the same species must be used to secure the most accurate results. This approach to comparison is employed here by species groups rather than with individual species.

#### Mississippi River backwaters

Information on standing crops was obtained under the auspices of the Upper Mississippi River Conservation Committee from two backwater areas near Savanna, Illinois (Upper Mississippi River Conservation Committee (63) and two near Oquawka, Illinois (Upper Mississippi River Conservation Committee, (64) (Table 9).

These estimates suggest that standing crops in the southern section are larger and have greater rough fish and smaller predator and game-fish components than those in the northern section of the upper river. While the percentage of panfish was much lower in the southern backwaters, the actual mean standing crop of this group approximated that of the area B average. As was the case in area B in 1949, the gizzard shad strongly influenced the total productivity in the two Oquawka areas. Deletion of the contribution of this single species in all cases reduces the difference between the two sections in average standing crops of all other species combined. With this omission the average standing crops of the northern and southern sections were approximately 225 and 294 pounds per acre, respectively. The mean production of area B alone without adult gizzard shad would approximate 285 pounds per acre, which would reduce the variation to insignificance.

#### Inland waters of adjacent States

Thompson (59) noted that, in contrast to the 500 pounds of fish per acre in most Illinois waters, the carrying capacity of northern Wisconsin and Michigan waters was about 50 pounds per acre or less, and that the intermediate regions with more fertile soils than the northerm regions show intermediate poundages. This generalization is strengthened by the information presented in table 10, which tends to show that the average total standing crops are greater in more southerly regions. The major differences, however, are reflected primarily in the abundance of fish in the rough-fish group.

Game-fish production in area B exceeded that reported for northern Wisconsin, northern and southern Minnesota, and lowa but was similar to that shown for southern Wisconsin and Illinois. The average standing crop of panfish in area B was similar to that found in northern waters, but less than that found in lakes further south.

The mean production of the combined panfish and game-fish groups was higher in area B than in lakes of the north and slightly greater than that reported for Iowa, central Illinois and Illinois River floodplain lakes. It was less than the average standing crops of those species in southern Minnesota, southern Wisconsin, and in three Illinois lakes.

#### SIZE AND AGE-GROUP COMPOSITION OF POPULATION IN AREA B, 1945-1949

The total standing crop of a water area is an index of its biological productivity, but the potential harvestable crop will depend on the size and age structure of the population. A description of this structure in area B at the time of fish removal in 1948 and 1949 is presented below. Age-frequency distribution in the various samples was determined by aging a number of fish within certain size ranges and then assigning ages to measured fish in these ranges on the basis of percentage composition of various size classes. Since there was only a small amount of overlap between the intervals, a reasonably accurate estimate of age composition of the entire population was obtained.

#### SIZE AND AGE STRUCTURE

#### Predators

Bowfin:--In the 1948 collection there were 28 bowfin. Of that number, 27 varied from 21.0 to 25.9 inches in length (Table 11). In 1949, ob specimens were recovered, of which 62 ranged from 17.0 to 24.9 inches in an uninterrupted 1-inch interval sequence. Forty of the latter group fell within the 21.0- to 23.9-inch interval. The 1948 sample did not indicate the presence of a strong size class which appeared in the 1949 collection as a group of larger fish. The scarcity of fish under approximately 17 inches in both years and in 1951 and 1952, as well, suggests that young and juveniles of this species do not generally inhabit backwater areas of this type in summer.

Shortnose gar:--Twenty-one specimens of shortnose gar under 8.0 inches in length (presumably of age group 0) and 12 between 15.0 and 25.9 inches were collected in 1948. In 1949 only 2 fish of the former size were recovered hile 57 between 17.0 and 25.0 inches were collected.

Longnose gar:--The three specimens collected in 1945 were all in the 18.0-18.9-inch interval. Two size groups, 9.0-11.9 inches and 19.0-28.9 inches, were present in the 1949 collection of 34 fish.

#### Game fish

Largemouth bass:--Young-of-the-year of largemouth bass were abundant in both years. In 1945 only two and three specimens of age groups I and II, respectively, were recovered. In the following year 24 and 10 fish of those respective age groups and 3 of age group III were taken (Table 12).

Northern pike:--Aging of scale samples with a high degree of certainty was not possible for northern pike so age groups cannot be defined. The numbers of specimens recovered in 1948 and 1949 were to and 18, respectively (Table 11). The smallest fish in 1948 were in the 22.0-22.9inch size class, and the largest exceeded 36 inches in length. In 1949, 13 of the 18 fish ranged from 14.0 to 20.9 inches in length and the largest was less than 30 inches.

Table 10: -- Average standing crops, in total and by certain species groups, of inland waters of States adjacent to the upper Mississippi River and of Area B.

Location	Number of	<u>Avera</u> Panfish	ge pou Game	nds per Rough	acre Total <u>1</u> /	Reference
	waters		fish	fish		
Northern Minnesota	<u>52/3</u> /	39	17	2	60	Peterson ( <u>40</u> )
Northern Wisconsin	<u>33</u> /	37	4	103	139	0'Donnell ( <u>39</u> )
Area B	4	36	29	112	324	Present study
Southern Minnesota	1417 <u>17</u>	64	12	283	375	Moyle, Kuehn and Burrows ( <u>34a</u> )
Southern Minnesota	68 <u>5</u> /	70	17	13	110	Moyle, Kuehn and Burrows ( <u>34a</u> )
Southern Wisconsin	<u>33</u> /	169	25	237	442	Juday, (24); Threinen and Helm, (61); Mraz and Threinen ( <u>36</u> )
Iowa	2 <u>3</u> /	48	10	690	778	Speaker, (51); Car- lander, ( <u>11</u> )
Illinois	<u>3</u> 2/	97	33	172	363	Thompson and Bennett (60 Bennett ( <u>6, 7</u> )
Central Illinois	9	60 <sup>6/</sup>			600	Thompson ( <u>59</u> )
Illinois <u>7</u> /		50-55 <u>6</u> /			400-500	Thompson ( <u>59</u> )

\*

1/ Includes predator, catfish. and forage-fish groups, if present.

2/ Littoral areas only.
3/ Data from sources ci Data from sources cited averaged by present authors.

Littoral areas only; includes lakes with 40 pounds or more of rough fish per acre.

Littoral areas only; includes lakes with less than 10 pounds of rough fish per acre.

6/ Game fish and panfish combined.

 $\overline{7}/$  Floodplain lakes in Illinois River valley.

Size range				Spe	cies			
(total length	Nort	hern ke	Chan	nel ish	Bows	fin	Bigmou	ith
in inchesy	1948	1949	1948	1949	1948	1949	1948	1949
8.0- 8.9 9.0- 9.9 10.0-10.9			1 1				4	3 2
11.0-11.9 12.0-12.9 13.0-13.9 1h.0-14.9 15.0-13.9		2 1	1 2 3 3 4	2	l	3 1	2 2	4 7
16.0-16.9 17.0-17.9 18.0-19.9 19.0-19.9 20.0-20.9		1 4 3 1 1	5 5 7 7	1 5 6 7		1 4 3 6	l l	l
21.0-21.9 22.0-22 9 23.0-23.9 21.0-21.9 25.0-25.9	5	l l	l	6 3 3 1	5 10 7 2 3	11 11 18 2 3		
26.0-26.9 27.0-27.9 28.0-28.9 29.0-29.9 30.0-30.9	կ 1 1	2 1				l		
31.0-31.9 32.0-32.9 36.0-30.9	] 1							
Total	16	18	10 <u>1</u> /	<u>4</u> 0	28	64 <u>2</u> /	10 <u>3</u> /	184/
A second se								

Table 11:--Length-frequency distribution of northern pike, channel catfish, bowfin, bigmouth buffalo, shortnose gar, longnose gar, and gizzard shad recovered from area B in 1948 and 1949.

1/ Does not include six specimens not measured.
2/ Does not include four fish not measured.
3/ Does not include 125 fish less than 8.0 inches in length.
4/ Does not include one specimen less than 8.0 inches in length.

Size range	Chantas		Specie	s	Cissend shed
in inches)	1948	1949	1948 1	949	1949
8.0- 8.9 9.0- 9.9				1	
10.0-10.9 11.0-11.9 12.0-12.9 13.0-13.9 14.0-14.9				2 1	351 281 14 42
15.0-15.9 16.0-16.9 17.0-17.9 18.0-18.9 19.0-19.9	1 1 6 2	1 7 3	3	1	28
20.0-20.9 21.0-21.9 22.0-22.9 23.0-23.9 24.0-24.9	1	5 6 12 10 5		3 4 3 4	
25.0-25.9 26.0-26.9 27.0-27.9 28.0-28.9 29.0-29.9	1	8		1 1	
30.0-30.9 31.0-31.9 32.0-32.9 33.0-33.9 34.0-34.9					
35.0-35.9 36.0-36.9					
Total	125/	57 <u>6</u> /	3	24	7167/

5/ Does not include 21 specimens less than 8.0 inches in length. 6/ Does not include two fish less than 8.0 inches in length. 7/ Based on length frequency in measured sample; does not include Based on length frequency in measured sample; does not include 293 specimens less than 8.0 inches in length.

		Number	Estimated	Percentage	Total length	n (inches)
Age group	Year class	of fish aged	total number in age group	of total number	Range	Average
			19.	.8		
0	1948	7	7 ÷ Q	99.0		
Ţ	1947	2	2	0.4	5.4- 8.2	7.3
II	1946	3	3	0.5	10.3-11.0	10.5
Total		12	494			
			19_	19		
0	1949	0	841	90.0		
I	1948	19	24	2.ć	0.1- 9.1	7.↓
1	1947	10	10	1.1	11.5-12.9	12.0
III	1946	3	3	0.3	13.1-15.3	14.1
Total		32	375			

Table 12:--The age, length at capture, and number of largemouth bass recovered from an a F in 1947 and 1943.

Table 19:-- The age, length at capture, and number of saugers recovered from area 7 in 1940 and 1949.

		Number	Estimated	Percentage	Total lengt	h (inches)
Age Year group class		of fish aged	total number in age group	of total number	Range	Average
			194	0		
0	1948	2	8	25.8		
I	1947	10	10	32.3	5.4- 7.8	7.1
II	1946	7	7	22.0	5.5-11.1	10.0
III	1945	5	5	16.1	11.9-13.3	12.7
VI	1944	1	1	3.2		14.5
Total		25	31			
			194	19		
0	1949	0	0			
I	1948	7	7	36.8	6.2- 8.5	7.3
II	1947	10	10	52.6	9.4-11.5	10.9
III	19_6	2	2	10.5	13.7-14.4	11.1
Total		19	19			

Tab. L.: -- The age, length at capture, and number of bluegills recovered from area B in 1948 and 1949.

	Veen	Number	Estimated	Percentage	Total lengt	h (inches)
group	class_	aged	in age group	number	Range	Average
			191	18		
0	1948	8	399	62.1		
I	1947	39	183	28.6	2.5-4.4	3.8
II	1946	50	55	8.6	4.9-6.6	5.7
III	1945	4	L	0.6	6.1-7.2	6.7
IV	1944	1	l	0.2		9.3
Total		102	642			
			192	19		
0	1949	0	3,103	77.6		
I	1948	17	862	21.6	4.0-5.0	4.5
II	1947	29	29	0.7	5.3-7.2	6.3
III	1946	24	4	0.1	6.7-8.6	7.6
IV	1945	l	1			9.0
Total		51	3,999			

Sauger:--Five age groups of saugers were represented in the 1948 collection of 31 fish (Table 13). Age groups 1, II, and III accounted for 32.3, 22.6, and 16.1 percent, respectively, of the total number. Excluding age group 0, the specimens ranged from 6.4 to 14.5 inches in length. In 1949 there were no young-of-theyear among the 19 fish recovered and the oldest specimen was of age group III. The 1947 year class was represented by a like number of fish in both years.

Walleye:--Of nine fish recovered in 1948, eight were of age group 0 and one was of age group V. The 1949 collection of 11 fish was not aged, but six varied from 3.8 to 7.5 inches and five from 17.2 to 22.2 inches in length.

#### Panfish

Bluegill:--Age groups 0-IV were present in both years (Table 14). In the 2 years age groups III and IV were represented by four and one specimens, respectively. The difference in numbers of young-of-the-year fish recovered in the two years (399 in 1948; 3,103 in 1949) is probably more apparent than real, since the 1949 collection was made approximately 1 month later in the year and the water was lower and clearer than in 1948. This assumption is supported by the fact that more than twice as many specimens of the 1948 year class were recovered in 1949 as 1-year-olds than were taken in the previous season as young-of-the-year. Age group II was more strongly represented in 1948 than in the following year. The largest fish in 1948 and 1949 were 9.3 and 9.0 inches in length, respectively.

Black crappie: -- More black crappies of age group I were collected in 1948 than in 1949 but representatives of age group ll were much more abundant in the latter year than in the former Table 15). The appearance of this strong 1947 year class in 1949 as age group II could not have been predicted on the basis of recovery data of 1948 when the fish were of age group I. The limited occurrence of fish of the 1945 year class in 1948 is repeated in the 1949 collection. Only four specimens of the 1944 year class were taken in 1948 but nine appeared in the collection a year later. This apparent strength of year class is not shown in the data for any other panfish species in either 1948 or 1949. A sharp decline in representation of older age groups was evident in both years. The largest fish from the combined collection was 12.8 inches in length.

Are Veer		Number	Estimated	Percentage	Total length (inches)				
Age group	class	of fish aged	in age group	oi total number	Range	Average			
	1948								
0	1948	10	2,056	96.0					
I	1947	27	52	2.4	4.6- 5.8	5.2			
II	1946	23	24	1.1	6.0- 8.8	7.4			
ITI	1945	14	Ц	0.2	9.0-10.L	9.6			
IV	1944	3	4	0.3	10.3-11.7	11.1			
Total		67	2,140						
			194	19					
0	1949	0	911	78.5					
I	1948	12	36	3.1	1.4- 6.6	5.6			
II	1947	11	196	16.l;	7.2- 8.8	8.3			
III	1946	14	14	1.2	9.0-10.2	9.8			
IV	1945	2	2	0.2	10.9-11.2	11.1			
V	1944	9	9	9.0	11.5-12.8	12.2			
Total		48	1,198			400 year 100			

Table 15:--The age, length at capture, and number of black crappies recovered from area P in 1946 and 1949.

White crappie: -- In 1948 the age-group composition of the white crappie was characterized by the relatively high number of age group Ill fish and by the scarcity of young-of-the-year fish (Table 16). The latter deficiency cannot be explained on the basis of poor recovery since a large sample of fingerling crappies was collected and closely examined to separate the two species. Age groups 1 through III were well represented but only one specimen of age group IV was recovered. The corresponding numbers for 1949 were quite different. Age group 0 was well represented in that year but fish of age group II and over were relatively scarce. The apparent weakness of the 1948 year class indicated by the 1948 collection

was not borne out by the 1949 results. In the latter collection the 1948 year class (age group l) was strongly represented. The largest fish in the combined collections was 12.8 inches in length.

White bass:--Natural reproduction of white bass was very successful in 1948 but only one specimen of age group 0 was collected in 1949 (Table 17). This scarcity in the latter year may be indicative of a tendency of white bass to move out of backwater areas with advancing size. Evidence of natural reproduction was also lacking in the 1951 and 1952 samples collected later in the year than that of 1948 and fish of older age groups were not prominent in any of the four

	Number Estimated Pe		Percentage	Total length	(inches)	
Age group	Year	of fish aged	in age group	number	Range	Average
0	1948	6	85	39.5		
I	1947	28	73	33.5	4.6-6.8	5.4
II	1946	36	36	16.5	6.5- 8.2	7.9
III	1945	22	22	10.1	9.3-10.7	9.9
IV	1944	l	1	0.5		10.9
Total		93	218			
			191	49		
0	1949	0	655	81.1		
I	1948	29	129	16.0	5.1- 8.0	6.8
II	1947	4	9	1.1	8.5- 9.4	8.9
III	1946	9	9	1.1	10.0-11.2	10.7
IV	1945	5	5	0.6	11.2-12.8	11.8
V	1944	1	1	0.1	68 49 6r	12.2
Total		48	808			

Table 16:--The age, length at capture, and number of white crappies recovered from area B in 1948 and 1949.

collections. Age groups 1 and II were represented by only one fish each in 1948, and in 1949 by nine and one fish, respectively. One individual of age group III was found in 1949.

Yellow perch: --Age groups 0, I, and II of yellow perch were present in 1948 but only young-of-the-year and fish of age group I were found in 1949 (Table 17). These recoveries, together with those of 1951 and 1952, suggest that adult yellow perch were either not abundant in the vicinity or that they do not frequent the habitat type studied during the summer months. The largest fish in the combined collections was 7.4 inches in length.

#### Catfish

Channel catfish: --Forty of the 46 channel catfish recovered in 1948 ranged from 8.0 to 21.9 inches in length (Table 11). Within this measured sample 24 fish were in the 16.0-19.9inch size range. In 1949 the size spread of the 40 specimens collected was 15.0 to 24.9 inches and 25 of these fell within the 18.0-21.9-inch interval. No attempt was made to determine the ages of the channel catfish.

Flathead catfish: --Two flathead catfish with total lengths of 21.2 and 21.4 inches were recovered in 1948. None were observed in 1949.

Age	Year	Number of fish	Estimated Percen total number of to	Percentage of total	Total length	n (inches)			
group	class	aged	in age group	number	Range	Average			
White bass, 1948									
0	1948	3	1,584	99.9					
I	1947	l	l	0.1		7.1			
II	1946	l	l	0.1		12.5			
Total		5	1,586						
			White bas	s, 1949					
0	1949	l	l	8.3		3.9			
I	1948	9	9	75.0	8.6-9.8	9.3			
II	1947	l	l	8.3		12.9			
III	1946	1	l	8.3		14.3			
Total		12	12						
			Yellow pe	erch, 1948					
0	1948	8	309	96.3					
I	1947	11	11	3.4	4.1-5.4	4.8			
II	1946	l	l	0.3		7.4			
Total		20	321						
			Yellow pe	erch, 1949					
0	1949	2	521	93.5	2.6-2.8	2.7			
I	1948	15	36	6.5	4.4-6.4	5.3			
Total		17	557						

Table 17:-- The age, length at capture, and number of white bass and yellow perch recovered from area B in 1948 and 1949.

Elack bulinead:--One black bullhead 5.6 inches in length was collected in 1948. In 1949 three fish ranging from 7.2 to 9.1 inches were recovered.

#### Forage fish

Gizzard shad:--In 1948 adult gizzard shad were very rare but in 1949 large fish predominated. Of the 1.009 collected in the latter year, Tip ranged from 11.0 to 15.9 inches in length (Table 11). This difference represents the most extreme variation in size-class structure between the two samples of any one species where the fish were present in appreciable numbers during both years.

#### Rough fish

Carp:--Since difficulty was experienced in aging carp beyond the second year of life, the age distributions indicated below should be considered as approximations. Seven age groups were represented in the 1948 sample which ranged up to 30.4 inches in length (Table 18). Almost 94 percent of the collection was if age group 0. Specimens of age group III comprised a distinct mode, suggesting the occurrence of a strong 1945 year class. Scale samples were not taken in 1949.

Spotted sucker: -- Age groups I. H. III. V and VI of the spotted sucker were represented in the 1949 collection of 40 fish (Table 19). Age groups I 1947 year class and V 1943 year class constituted 75.0 and 17.5 percent. respectively) of the total number. The 1944 year class was missing and the 1940 year class was represented by only one fish. In the 1940 collection of 115 fish, the 1947 year class again was predominant with 45.1 percent of the total. The 1-45 year class of which only one was recovered in 1948, accounted for 15.0 percent of the 104- collection. Two specimens of the 1944 year class were taken. The 1945 year class was still present one specimen). It is apparent that the 1-48 sample gave little indicatter of the real year-class strength, with the exception of the 1-47 hatch.

Freshwater drumt--The .º freshwater crum taken in the 1945 collection were distributed through age groups 0 to VI (Table 20). Age groups I through VII were present in 1949 (26 fish) with a distinct mode in the distribution represented by the 1947 year class (57.7 percent). This strength of year class was not evident in the 1945 data.

Northern river carpsucker:--Six northern river carpsuckers <u>Carpiodes</u> carpio<u>carpio</u> (Rafinesque). of age group 0, three of age group 1 and one of age group VI comprised the entire 1948 collection (Table 18).

Northern redhorse:--Of the 24 northern redhorse. Moxostoma aureolum (LeSueur). recovered in 1948 all but one were of age group 0. The single fish belonged to the 1943 year class (age group V) and measured 17.1 inches in length (Table 18).

Bigmouth buffalo:--The 1948 collection of bigmouth buffalo included 125 fish less than 8.0 inches in length and 10 that ranged between 10.0 and 19.9 inches (Table 11). In the 1949 collection of 19 fish one was less than 8.0 inches in length. 10 ranged between 9.0 and 12.9, and two measured 18.9 and 20.8 inches. Difficulty encountered in identifying annuli prevented assignment of individuals to age groups.

Smallmouth buffalo:--Eight smallmouth buffalo, Ictiobus bubalus (Rafinesque), recovered in 1949 ranged between 9.4 and 14.1 inches and all were of age group I. None was observed in 1943.

#### Comparison with other Mississippi River areas

Surber (54) found that the important fishes in the Mississippi River sloughs of the Trempealeau. Wisconsin-Winona Minnesota area which were isolated at low water were the black crappie, bluegill pumpkinseed, black bullhead, brown bullhead, and yellow perch. The northern pike, bowfin and largemouth bass were the principal cartivorous species but they were present in relatively lower numbers. The populations in area B were similar but the pumpkinseed, bullheads, and yellow perch were less important.

Ago Veor		Number	Estimated	Percentage	Total lengt	n (inches)
group	class	aged	in age group	number	Range	Average
			Car	p		
0	1948	10	1,023	93.9		
ī	1947	12	12	1.1	10.5-14.4	12.0
II	1946	7	7	0.5	15.6-16.2	17.0
III	1945	22	29	2.6	18.4-22.9	20.9
IV	1944	9	13	1.2	20.9-24.9	22.3
V	1943	1	5	0.5	25.0-28.0	26.7
?	?	l	1	0.1		30.1
Total		65	1,090			
			Northern o	arpsucker		
0	1928	0	6	60.0		
I	1947	3	3	30.0	7.2-8.5	7.9
VI	1942	l	1	10.0		20.3
Total		<u>1</u>	10			
			Northern	redhorse		
0	1948	0	23	95.S		
Υ	1943	l	l	2		17.1
Total		l	24			

Table 18:--The age, length at capture, and number of carp, northern carpsuckers, and northern redhorse recovered from area B in 1948.

A	Veen	Number	Estimated	Percentage	Total length	n (inches)
Age group	class	aged	in age group	oi total number	Range	Average
			194	8		
0	1948	0				
I	1947	24	30	75.0	4.7-6.4	5.4
II	1946	l	1	2.5		10.1
III	1945	1	1	2.5		13.5
IV	1944	0	0	0.0		
V	1943	6	7	17.5	15.6-17.5	16.8
IV	1942	1	1	2.5	~	17.4
Total		33	40			
			194	9		
0	1949	0	0			
I	1948	14	38	33.6	6.7-8.4	7.7
II	1947	30	51	45.1	11.3-13.2	12.2
ILI	1946	3	17	15.0	14.6-15.4	15.0
IV	1945	2	4	3.5	15.7-16.6	16.2
V	1944	2	2	1.8	16.4-15.8	16.6
VI	1943	l	l	0.9		16.5
Total		52	113			

Table 19:-- The age, length at capture, and number of spotted suckers recovered from area B in 1948 and 1949.

A	Voor	Number	Estimated	Percentage	Total lengt	h (inches)
group	class	aged	in age group	number	Range	Average
			194	.8		
0	1948	2	7	36.8		
I	1947	2	2	1.0.5		7.6
II	1946	3	3	15.8	11.0-11.9	11.5
III	1945	l	l	5.3		14.2
IV	1944	2	2	10.5	15.2-16.0	15.6
V	1943	3	3	15.8	16.7-17.2	17.0
VI	1942	l	l	5.3		17.9
Total		14	19			
			191	19		
0	1949	0	0	~~~~	01+ (00 au	
I	1948	4	4	15.4	8.2-10.4	9+ <u>1</u>
II	1947	15	15	51.7	10.8-13.0	11.9
III	1946	l	l	3.8		15.0
IV	1945	2	2	7.7	15.3-16.7	16.0
V	1944	2	2	7.7	18.2-18.4	18.2
VI	1943	l	l	3.8	-re -ris all	17.9
VII	1942	l	l	3.8	60° 000 mg	19.9
Total		26	26			

Table 20: -- Age, length at capture, and number of freshwater drum recovered from area B in 1948 and 1949.

Of the species represented in area B, only the largemouth bass, bluegill, black crappie, and white crappie were present in sufficient numbers and sizes to warrant comparison of population structure with those in other sections of the river. In the following comparisons, emphasis is placed on longevity of life since the limited collections and the variable methods by which other populations were sampled make other comparisons of doubtful value.

#### Largemouth bass

The oldest largemouth bass in the combined collections of area B was of age group III. The oldest fish taken in the Illinois-Missouri section of the river was of age group V (Upper Mississippi River Conservation Committee, 62).

#### Bluegill

The combined 1948 and 1949 collections from area B included only one bluegill of age group IV and only four of age group III. Kelley (25) found the oldest fish collected from the Mississippi River in the vicinity of La Crosse, Wisconsin in the latter half of May to be of age group V. A gradual decline in representation of older fish was apparent as netting progressed and by September age groups IV and V had disappeared from the catch. He ruled out migration as a factor and ascribed the decline primarily to natural mortality. Meehean (32) found no bluegills beyond age group III in Mississippi River sloughs of the Trempealeau area. The oldest fish netted in the Illinois-Missouri waters of the Mississippi River were 5 years of age (Upper Mississippi River Conservation Committee, 62).

#### Black crappie

The oldest black crappies in the 1948 and 1949 collections from area B were of age groups IV and V, respectively. Kelley (25) noted a decline in trap-net catches of 4- and 5year-old fish from May to September and concluded the principal cause to be natural mortality. The oldest specimen collected in the Illinois-Missouri waters of the river was of age group VI (Upper Mississippi River Conservation Committee, 62).

#### White crappie

In area B in i948 the oldest white crappie was of age group IV (one specimen), and in 1949, one fish of age group V was collected. Kelley (25) noted that by September, very few 4- and 5-year-old fish were being caught in the La Crosse area and again attributed the loss primarily to natural mortality. The oldest fish taken in the Illinois-Missouri section of the river was of age group VI (Upper Mississippi River Conservation Committee, 62).

#### General consideration of age structure

Data presented in this section suggest that these species in the upper Mississippi River backwaters are generally short-lived. Results of an investigation in several similar areas near La Crosse in 1948 tend to substantiate this hypothesis (Kelley, 25). Few fish of the species studied at La Crosse and in the present investigation were found to be greater than 5 years of age. This age structure is in contrast to much of the published data which show a tendency in many waters of the north central States for populations of the species considered to be longer-lived.

#### GROWTH RATES OF FISH

Butler and Smith (8) and Appelget and Smith (1) reported on growth of the freshwater drum and the channel catfish in the upper Mississippi River, respectively. Eddy and Carlander (15) presented limited growth-rate data on the white bass and spotted sucker from the Mississippi River and a general summary of the growth rates of several species from the Illinois-Missouri waters of the river was reported by the Upper Mississippi River Conservation Committee (62). Because the number of scale samples taken from each species was relatively small, no attempts have been made to validate the scale method for the present collections. Adequate validation of the method for some of the species included here has not yet been presented but successful employment of the scale method of aging and growth analysis by various investigators is considered to be an adequate basis for its acceptance in the present case. Eddy and Carlander (15) presented general growth summaries for all species herein studied except the orange spotted sunfish, Lepomis humilis (Girard). Smith and Moe (49) and Moyle (34) also reported such summary data for all species considered here except the white crappie, spotted sucker, orangespotted sunfish, bigmouth buffalo, and smallmouth buffalo.

A rectllinear relationship between total body length and length of the anterior scale radius was used for all growth calculation. The values of the correction for length at time of scale formation, where used (Table 21), were taken from various sources except for carp. Following the method of Butler and Smith (8) for examination of scale pocket formation, the average total length at time of scale formation (in the area of the body from which samples were taken) of carp was found to be 0.9 inches.

Table 21:--Values of correction for length at time of scale formation in the various species used in growth calculations.

Species	Correction Total length in inches
Largemouth bass	C.8
White bass	<b>1.0</b>
Bluegill	0.46
Bigmouth buffalo	C.O
Smallmouth buffale	0.0
Carp	0.0
Black crappie	0. 2
White crappie	C."
Freshwater drum	
Yellow perch	
Sauger	. –
Spotted sucker	
Orangespotted sunfish	0.1

Back calculations of length at various annuli were made by the use of manila tagboard strips marked from the projected scale image and a straightline nomograph (Carlander and Smith, <u>13</u>). Two scales from each sample were read to minimize the influence of variability of the scales. Size of the samples and incomplete sex data did not permit separate calculations for each sex.

References in this section to the number of year classes or age groups present exclude young-of-the-year (age group 0).

#### Miller lake

**Growth-rate calculations** were made for **eight species from** Miller Lake (Table 22). For

each of these species the difference in numerical representation of the 1944 and 1945 year classes (age groups III and II) was extensive. Because so few specimens of the former year class were present, significant figures for most species are limited to age groups I and II. In general, very poor growth was shown for all species in 1945. Since that year class strongly affects the weighted calculations due to its strong representation in the samples compared to other year classes, the resulting data are not considered to be representative of the general growth picture for the area. Butler and Smith (8) found similar conditions in the 1945 year class of the freshwater drum.

ab' 22:-- Jrand average calculated total lengths in inches at time of annulus formation of various species, sexes combined, from Miller Lake, August 15, 1947.

Canal an	Number in sample				Tetel		Immulting				
Species	1943	1944	1945	1946	unupet.	I	II	III	IV		
Largemouth bass			27	38	05	3,2	8.0				
Bluegill		l	83	17	101	1.6	3.8	0.9			
Rlack crappie		1	بلب	44	69	2.0	4.4	8.1			
White crapple	1	1	10	12	30	1.9	4.7	8.0	9.1		
Yellow perch	1	5	35	68	109	2.8	5.7	8.9	10.5		
Northern pike		l	21	38	60	8.9	15.7	20.8			
Sauger			P	7	14	4.5	8.8				
Spotted sucker		5	36	35	76	1.9	6.7	11.7			

#### Areas A and B

The growth-rate calculations for various species from a reas A and B have been combined where an increase in the size of the sample of poorly represented year classes would result. It is assumed that fish from both a reas represent the same population because: 1) there is agreement in the growth-rate calculations among well-represented year classes of certain species; 2) both areas open upon the same unobstructed channel during low water stages; and 3) at high water levels both are virtually contiguous and offer an opportunity for random distribution of fish over the entire area. Robert Sharp<sup>7</sup>/

7/Personal communication, December 14, 1951.

demonstrated that fish will move into flooded areas during high water stages. He eradicated fish from a rearing pond at the U.S. Fishery Station, Guttenberg, Iowa, which had been dry in the fall of 1950 but from which 124 pounds of fish per acre were obtained after recession of the flood water in the spring of 1951. Fish had access to the pond for approximately 2 weeks, during which time 16 identified species had moved into the area. Random movement of several species into and out of a Mississippi River backwater area has also been reported (Upper Mississippi River Conservation Committee, 64). Surber (54) related similar activity in Mississippi River sloughs to changes in water level.

Bluegill:--The growth of bluegills was determined from 169 fish collected from area A, and area B, 1948 and 1949. Althor 3h this sample was larger than that of any other species examined, the oldest age group was in its fifth season of growth (age group IV) and was represented by only two specimens. The average calculated total lengths at the end of each year of life of the four age groups present were 2.0, 4.4, 6.4, and 8.4 inches, respectively (Table 23).

The bluegills collected in areas A and B grew much faster than those from waters in various localities listed in table 24. The average calculated total lengths of age groups III and IV exceeded the average total lengths at capture for the corresponding age groups of the bluegill in 17 southern Wisconsin lakes (Mackenthum, 30) and were larger than the Michigan average total lengths at capture for the same two age groups (Beckman, 4).

Black crappie:--Growth rate of the black crappie collected in area A, and area B in 1948 and 1949 was calculated from 132 scale samples. Since the five year classes found in these areas were all well represented, we believe the average growth calculated from this c hection more truly represents actual conditions than those determined for other species. 't the end of each of the first five growing seasons, the black crappie averaged 2.7, 5.7, 8.5, 10.3, and 11.4 inches, respectively, in total length (Table 25).

With two exceptions, the growth of the black crappie in the Fountain City backwater areas was generally faster than that cited in several waters in various localities (Table 26). After the third growing season, average calculated growth in areas A and B was greater than the Michigan (Beckman, 1949) and southerm Wisconsin (Mackenthun, 29) average total lengths at capture for corresponding age groups.

 GC#DC	1111-15	e calcul	area	total lengths 1	n inches at	time of	1
annula	is form	ation of	the	bluegill, seres	combined,	from are	5
1, 10	, a	20 8795	1.	1948 and 19.9.			

Year class	Tear of capture	Erozb Yše	Number of specimens	Area of capture	Ţ	Arrent II	lus III	IV
19_5	1949	I	17	З	2.6	-		
1917	19.5 19.5 19.9	I I II	8 39 29	-4 m	2.2 2.2 2.0	4.7		
1926	1925 1925 1929		1.50	(1) (1) (m	1.7 1.9 1.8	3.9 4.3 3	6.6	
19.5	1918 1918 1949	III III IV	2	-4 p1 (n)	1.5	3.9 0 9	0.1 5.9 7.2	8+3
19	19_5	17	1	fi i	2.2	5.1	7.5	.5
la ana	average cal length	culated			2.0		6.4	8.4
Fumber	of fish		169		169	105	12	2

				-	
	Britspers	÷			
- a' a**	Presidin and y		na Biag	4	·
···· ··· · ··· ··· ···	1997 <u>a</u>	1.	-	•	•
as, " is as lar				* • *	<sup>_</sup>
No, artist		· • ^	14	14	<b>.</b>
Me. let the sta	the set of the second s	1.7		- +	
•≞, ≮ ⊰€	2 m	1.	۰.		•
iznis, fimelar sverig	Berry 11 -			- • <sup>*</sup>	۰.
A DATE STORES		۰,۶			۰.
	nach ins Brans .	1.0		÷.1	<i>4</i> .

i shar antish bibuntu iti an anuer 1.4 m . I minar (ne prath.

-- Frand average calculated total lengths in increas at time of annulus firmation of the black orannie, series orabilized, firm on the second secon

 -	5 *	1.18	ingthe in	** **		
 <u>.</u> *		-12 (Tr	1120 00	-181.1	-1.	

								_	
lear class	Cartare	gro in	stecimens	Carta Ci	-			17	
1945	19.9	-	12	=	3+1				
19_7	1948 1948 1948	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	23 27 11	+4 (1, 1°,	11 (s) (s) + + + 111	÷			
19.40	1918 1918 1919	4 4 4 1 4 0 4 0 4 0 4 0 4 0 4 0 4 0 4 0 4 0 4 0	1 (N)	41 11 10	12, 41 41 0 0 0 0 121 ( 1 1 1 1	in the	T+2		
1945	1915 1949	17	ž	4 F (F)	1.0		11 - 11 - 11 - 11	2742	
:9	10.0		10	(1) (1)	2.0	24 24	5.	1.2	
irand	average o length	alculat	æć		2.°			1.3	
h anter	of fiss		1,32		1.32		~	*	2

n d tean 5 − tr					_	-
· 13. 142 . 20-			۰.	•		
the in the last	3.1 4 <u>-</u>					
And the second s			· . ·			
The Past Lac	and the second s		÷			
Cast. The	and a fear of the					
Line, Ficht im	o man laster .	Ξ.	÷.,£			
Te . 200 - 0 20	- designation de se	-	=			
organization and page	77 -	-				
194 - 194 194	iant and Drant 🔔					

 Grant average calculated total lengths in incomes at time of annulus formation of the white preprie, seems contined, from ones 1, 1, and 1, 1, and .

Tear	Tear of	r of Are	Number of	Area of			Arila		
<u>C] 355</u>	capture	pr ap	Spennens	2 Ger 1110 0	1			-	-
19.1	199	:	29	-	340				
174	1919	1 1 4 4 4 4	2-			0			
1-	1000		12 30 0	11 - 11 Se	104		4 0 2.2		
1.5	19979		11215	-ef [f1] 13			110 1	 antid .	
a John	1919	$\frac{1}{2} \frac{7}{4}$	7 1 14	10 1 2	2.3	112	* # * *	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	n in mar i
Grand av	erage cai lægta	misted			2.4	5.0	G	11.7	· · · · ·
Sumber o	f tish		105		18	1		-	-

-- Calculated total lengths in incres at various attril of the white grantle from mifferent localities.

Locality		1 c					
		÷				U.	
741. 17	Present study		5	÷.,			
lowa, Rec can Lars	Levels (1950a	1.4	[+=	÷.,			
dinnescia average	1195		5.5	·."	1.9	11.7	
Indiana, Foots Pond	Alorer and Lagler (1911)	1.5	1.0	1.1	· · · · ·	11.5	
	nosch and Brans 1911 -	1.6	4.5		÷.:	11.5	
Iova, Tiesr Lace	Ericeson 1952			~			
lova, East Lake	Leida 1950a	1 - 19 7 2 40	543	÷."		÷	
lowa, lare Anguaha	aemes. 22   1955	1.2	545				

1 Estimated from grant.

White crappie:--Growth-rate calculations were made from 165 scale samples from the white crappie from area A, and area B, 1948 and 1949. Five age groups were represented but only one fish of age group V was present. The generally poor growth in 1945, previously referred to, is most clearly demonstrated in these calculations, although it is also evident in those for the bluegill and black crappie. The average calculated total lengths at the end of each of the first five growing seasons were 2.6, 6.0, 9.1, 10.9, and 11.7 inches (Table 27).

The growth of the white crappie in a reas A and B was generally faster than that shown for other waters in table 28. Average total lengths at capture of age groups IV and V approximated those of Lake Decatur, Illinois, which Hansen (20) considered to represent average or slightly better than average growth for the State.

Largemouth bass:--Growth rate was determined from the scales of 32 fish collected during the 1949 poisoning of area B. Only three age groups were represented in the entire population. Grand average calculated total lengths at the time of annulus formation for age groups I, Il, and III were 4.0, 9.6, and 12.8 inches, respectively (Table 29).

(able Zet--Grand average calculated total lengths in inches at time of annulus formation of several species, sexes combined, from the combined area A, 1967, and ares W, 1948 and 1949, collections furnher of specieous shown in parentheses.

Species	Total number of specimens	I	II	III	Annulus IV		VI	VII
Largemouth	32	4.0(32)	9.6(13)	12.8(3)				
Sauger	42	4.9(42)	9.0(25)	11.9(8)	13.6(1)			
Carp	54	7.7(54)	14.8(42)	19.1(35)	22.1(13)	25.8(L)		
Freshwater drum	37	5.0(37)	9.6(31)	12.5(13)	14.8(11)	16."(")	17.5(3)	19.3(1)
White bass	11	5.7(11)	10.7(2)	13.4(1)				

The growth of the largemouth bass in these areas was considerably more rapid than the Wisconsin average (Bennett, 5), the Minnesota average, and that in three Iowa lakes (Lewis, 27; Ruhr, 45). It was also faster than the rate shown by this species in southern Wisconsin waters (Bennett, 5) and in Sportsmens Lake, Illinois (Thompson and Bennett, 60). Bennett (6) reported a faster growth rate in Onized Lake, Illinois. The average total lengths at capture exceeded those of the corresponding age groups in the Michigan average (Beckman, 4).

Sauger:--Calculation of growth rate was made from 42 scale samples collected in area B in 1948 and 1949. Total lengths at the end of each of the first four growing seasons were 4.9, 9.0, 11.9, and 13.6 inches, respectively (Table 29).

The growth of saugers in area B was much faster than that in Lake of the Woods, Minnesota (Carlander, 9) and was also well above the Minnesota average. It closely approximated that in Lake Erie (Van Oosten, 67).

Carp:--Growth calculations were made from the scales of 54 carp taken in area B in 1948. Difficulty was encountered in the interpretation of the various apparent annuli on the scales from fish over 2 years of age and 12 scale samples of the original 66 in the collection were discarded. A similar problem was reported by English (17) and the Upper Mississippi River Conservation Committee (62). Average calculated total lengths at the end of each of the first five growing seasons were 7.7, 14.8, 19.1, 22.1, and 25.8 inches, respectively (Table 29).

The growth rate of carp approximated that of the Minnesota average. English (17) reported a faster growth of carp in Clear Lake, lowa.

Spotted sucker:--Growth was calculated from a collection of 85 scale samples taken in area B in 1948 and 1949. Six age groups were present but age group VI was represented by only one fish in each of the 2 years. The average calculated total lengths at the end of each of the first six growing seasons were 2.4, 8.0, 11.2, 13.8, 15.6, and 16.3 inches respectively (Table 30).

Table	30:Grand	average	calcul	lated	total	lengths	in	inche	es at	time	of
	annulu	is forma	tion of	f the	spotte	d sucker	•, :	sexes	combi	ned,	
	from	area B	, 1948	and ]	1949.						

Year	Year of	Age	Number of	f Annulus					
class	capture	group	specimens	I	II	III	IV	V	IV
1948	<b>1</b> 949	I	14	3.3					
1947	1948 1949	I II	24 30	2.5 2.2	8.7				
1946	1948 1949	II III	l l	1.3 1.9	7.1 7.3	12.8			
1945	1948 1949	III VI	1 2	2.2 2.l	7.4	12.3 11.7	14.6		
1944	1949	V	2	1.7	5.4	9.7	12.9	15.3	
1943	1948 1949	V IV	6 1	2.0 2.3	6.9 5.8	10.9 9.5	14.0 12.5	15.9 14.1	15.6
1942	1948	VI	l	2.0	7.1	10.9	13.8	15.7	16.9
Grand a	average cal length	lculated		2.4	8.0	11.2	13.8	15.6	10.3
Number	of fish		85	85	47	16	12	10	2

Freshwater drum:--Growth calculations were made from a collection of 37 fish from area B in 1948 and 1949. Seven age groups were present but age group VII was represented by only one specimen. The average calculated total lengths for age groups 1-VII were 5.0, 9.6, 12.5, 14.8, 16.5, 17.5, and 19.2 inches, respectively (Table 29). These determinations exceeded both those reported by Van Oosten (<u>66</u>) for Lake Erie and by Kuehn (<u>26</u>) as the average for three Minnesota lakes.

White bass:--The growth rate of the white bass was determined from a collection of 11 scale samples. Three year classes were represented but only one fish of each of the two older age groups was included. Calculated total lengths for age groups 1, 11, and 111 were 5.7, 10.7, and 13.4 inches, respectively (Table 29). This growth exceeded the Minnesota average and that in Lake Erie (Van Oosten, 67), and approximated that in Clear, Storm, and Spirit lakes, Iowa (Lewis, 28; Sigler, 46, 47).

Yellow perch:--All but one of 27 yellow perch collected in area B in 1948 and 1949 were of age group l, the single exception being of age group II. The average calculated total lengths of age groups l and II were 2.6 and 6.1 inches, respectively. Bigmouth buffalo:--The average calculated total length of age group I, based on a collection of 16 fish of that age group from area B in 1949, was 5.1 inches. Annuli could not be identified on scales of two larger specimens collected at the same time.

Smallmouth buffalo:--Eight smallmouth buffalo were collected in area B in 1949. All were of age group l and the average calculated total length at time of annulus formation was 5.8 inches.

Orangespotted sunfish:--Of 18 fish collected from area A, all but one were of age group I, the lone exception being of age group II. The average calculated total lengths of age groups I and II were 1.1 and 2.6 inches, respectively.

#### Comparison of growth in areas A and B and Illinois waters of the Mississippi River

General growth-rate information for several species in the Illinois-Missouri waters of the Mississippi River were reported by the Upper Mississippi River Conservation Committee (62). Data for six species taken from this report, together with a summary of findings of the present study, are shown in table 31. Since the growth figures for the lower section of the river appeared in a brief tabular form with no details concerning the manner of calculation, a precise comparison is not possible. In addition, growth of certain species was based on average total lengths at capture for which the dates are unknown.

The growth of both the black and white crappies in areas A and B was faster than that for these species in the Illinois-Missouri waters of the Mississippi River. Reliability of this

Table 31:--Growth rates of six species in areas A and B and Illinois-Missouri waters of the Mississippi River expressed as total lengths in inches. Except where indicated, calculated lengths are shown.

Species	Number of			בערעומת			
	specimens	I	II	III	IV	V	
Largemouth bass Areas A and B Illinois-Missouri	32 119	1.0 1.1	9.6 8.6	12.8 11.1	12.9	14.2	
Bluegill Areas A and B Illinois-Missouri	169 105	2.0 3.0	4.4 5.3	6.4 6.6	8.4 7.3	7.8	
Black crappie Areas A and B Areas A and <u>1</u> / Areas A and <u>2</u> / Illinois-Missouri <u>3</u> /	132 64 48 142	2.7 5.1 5.6	5.7 7.4 8.3 5.7	8.5 9.6 9.8 7.6	10.3 11.1 11.1 8.6	11.4 12.2 9.6	
White crappie Areas A and B Areas A and B1/ Areas A and B2/ Illinois-Missouri <u>3</u> /	165 117 48 220	2.6	6.0 7.9 8.9 7.2	9.1 9.7 10.7 8.4	10.9 10.9 11.8 9.8	11.7 12.2 10.2	
Freshwater drum Areas A and B Areas A and B1/ Areas A and B2/ Illinois-Missouri3/	37 11 26 303	5.0 7.6 4.5	9.6 11.5 11.9 8.9	12.5 14.2 15 0 11.2	14.8 15.6 16.0 12.5	16.5 17.0 18.2 14.3	
Sauger Areas A and B Illinois-Missouri	115 115	4.c 5.3	9.0 10.8	11.9 10.8	13.6 14.5		

1/ Average lengths at time of capture, July 6-7. 1948.

2/ Average lengths at time of capture. August 3, 1949.

3/ Average lengths at time of capture, 1944 (no dates given).

conclusion is enhanced by the availability of comparatively large samples from both regions and by demonstration of greater average calculated lengths of age groups III, IV, and V of fish from areas A and B than of average lengths at capture of fish in corresponding age groups from the Illinois-Missouri section. Growth of the white crappie in the Fountain City backwaters also exceeded that reported by Hansen (20) at three stations in the Illinois-Iowa waters of the Mississippl River. Of the two species, the white crappie grew faster in both the Fountain City area and the Illinois-Missouri-Iowa section (Barnickol and Starrett, 3).

The freshwater drum also exhibited faster growth in areas A and B than it did in the Illinois-Missouri section of the river. Reasonable agreement between the growth data in the present study and those of Butler and Smith (8) tends to support this conclusion. Average calculated lengths of advanced age groups of fish from the Fountain City areas exceeded the average lengths at capture of corresponding age groups in the lower part of the river.

On the basis of annual length increments and on calculated lengths of the oldest age group common to samples from both sections of the river, growth of the bluegill and largemouth bass appeared to be faster in the Fountain City areas when it is compared to that in Illinois-Missouri waters; however, because collections of older-age fish of both species were limited, this evidence is considered to be weak.

Growth of the sauger appeared to be slower in areas A and B than in the lower section of the river.

Appelget and Smith (1) reported a growth rate of the channel catfish in Iowa-Wisconsin waters which apparently was slower than that in the Illinois-Missouri section (Upper Mississippl River Conservation Committee, 62). Barnickol and Starrett (3) reported the growth of this species to be faster in the Illinois-Missouri section than in Illinois-Iowa waters of the river.

The foregoing comparisons tend to confirm the ratings given by Hatner (41) concerning wate quality in relation to fish production in the upper Mississippi River. He found that in comparison with waters producing good fish fauna, the Mississippi River would be rated good in the upper section and only fair in the lower section. However, recent findings, which indicate faster growth of the channel catfish and sauger in the lower section than in the upper portion, demonstrate that the fish species themselves must be given primary consideration in any evaluation of fish-growth potential of a water.

#### General consideration of growth

Without exception the growth rate of each species examined in the present study exceeded 8/ those previously cited as averages of two or more waters in Minnesota, Wisconsin, southern Wisconsin, Illinois, Michigan, northern Indiana. and Ohio. The growth of certain species also exceeded or approximated that reported for individual waters in Illinois. Indiana, Iowa, and Minnesota, with the following exceptions: I) carp in Clear Lake, Iowa; 2) largemouth bass in Onized Lake, Illinois; and 3) black crappies in Onized Lake, Illinois, and Red Haw Lake, Iowa. It is evident, considering the geographic region and the latitude, that the growth of the fish species studied from areas A and **B** was comparatively fast.

#### FACTORS INFLUENCING PRODUCTIVITY AND POPULATION DEVELOPMENT

Detailed investigation of conditions which influence fish production was not attempted in the present study. The rather limited data from other areas, however, which compare environmental factors with standing crops of fish justify a short discussion of observed conditions and related data from other sources. Among the elements most likely to affect population levels are water and soil fertility, food availability, species composition, and water-level fluctuation.

<sup>8/</sup>Average total lengths of the younger age groups were less than those shown from other studies in certain cases but those of the older age groups were consistently greater in the present study.

#### Water and soil fertility

Water fertility. -- It is generally recognized that fertility of surface water is primarily dependent upon fertility of the watershed from which it drains. A major share of the 47 percent of Minnesota land classed as good to excellent for general agricultural production (Engene and Pond 16) lies in the upper Mississippi River drainage. It includes much of the Clarion-Webster soil association which is unsurpassed by any other in the State for corn production (McMiller, 31). It might then be expected that the water which drains from this region would also be fertile. Water analyses 2/ were run on samples collected in area B and vicinity on October 3, 1955 and July 24, 1956 and in the main channel at La Crosse, Wisconsin on September 10, 1956 (Table 32). Concentrations of total phosphorus in and near area B ranged from 0.091 to 0.114 ppm and those of total nitrogen from 0.69 to 1.43 ppm. The average phosphorus-nitrogen ratios in water samples collected October 3, 1955 and July 24, 1956 were 1:8.2 and 1:10.9, respectively. Total alkalinity ranged from 100.0 to 115.0 ppm among the combined samples from area B and vicinity.

Moyle (33) reported that total alkalinity and total phosphorus appear to be the most valuable indices of lake productivity in Minnesota waters. Lakes with a total alkalinity of 91 ppm or more were classed as high in both fish and plant productivity. Those with a total phosphorus content (unfiltered samples) of 0.051 to 0.10 and 0.11 to 0.20 were rated good and very good, respectively, in terms of phosphorus fertility. Moyle found the average fish yields from hard water ponds with total phosphorus exceeding 0.05 ppm to be highest when total nitrogen ranged from 0.51 ppm to 1.0 ppm although nitrogen appears to be only occasionally a limiting factor in the productivity of Minnesota waters.

The basic components generally associated with fertility were found in the present study to equal or exceed those values described above which are indicative of heavy fish production and it is concluded that chemical fertility of the upper Mississippi River is high and capable in that regard of supporting a fish population at a proportionate level.

Bottom soils.--The importance of bottom soils in fish culture in Europe is described by Neess (<u>38</u>) in his review of numerous papers. The bottom soil in area B was a silty clay in texture and had a organic content of 7.49 percent (Table 33). The soils of both the side channel adjacent to area B and the main channel were of a coarser texture and contained less organic material.

In a series of Minnesota walleye rearing ponds, Dobie (14) found higher fish production in ponds with fine-textured soils than in those with the bottom composed of coarse material. Wood (68) concluded that the availability of essential plant nutrients in the bottom soils is one of the two most important factors affecting the productivity of impoundments.

The pressure of fine-textured soil with a higher organic content than that associated with the coarser soils of the adjacent lotic environments suggests that the backwater areas in the upper Mississippi River represent a major component of the entire fish-producing habitat.

#### Food availability

That fish production is directly related to the abundance of food in plankton or macroinvertebrate form has often been suggested.

Surber (54) found an abundance of phytoplankton and rotifers in samples from upper Mississippi River sloughs. He reported Cyclops, chironomid larvae, and ostracods to be the "animal staples" in these waters.

Comparison of bottom fauna and epifauna production in 1929-30 with that in 1953 in three sloughs located approximately 20 miles below Fountain City was reported by the Upper Mississippi River Conservation Committee (65) (Table 34). In the 1953 samples, copepods,

<sup>9/</sup> Analyses were run at the laboratory of the Minnesota Department of Conservation, Bureau of Research and Planning, St. Paul, Minnesota.

Table -2:--Results of chemical analyses run on water samples collected in area P and vicinity on October 3, 1955 and July 24, 1950 and in the main channel at La Crosse, Wisconsin on September 10, 1956. All values are expressed in parts per mil ion.

Location	Sul- fates	Total phos- phorus	Chlorides	An onia	Organic nitrogen	Total nitrogen	Total alka- linity
	Anna R	and vi	cinity, Oct	wber 3, 1	955		
Area P, surface	10.0	0.095	4.0	0.12	0.56	0.32	102.5
Area R. 4-foot depth	18.0	0.120	4.2	0.18	0.59	0.69	102.5
Side channel, surface	19.0	0.091	4.0	0.15	0.86	0.95	103.8
Main channel, surface	16.0	0.105	4.4	0,20	0.51	0.86	100.0
Main channel, ó-foot depth	17.0	0.098	4.0	0.18	0.44	0.83	101.3
	.irea	and v	icinity, Ju	17 24, 19	56		
Area P. suríace	66.0	0.114	6.0	0.00	0.95	1.21	115.0
Area P. 4-foot depth	71.5	0.109	6.3	0.00	1.11	1.43	113.8
Main channel, surface	60.0	0.116	6.0	0.00	1.00	1.07	115.0
	La Crosse	e, Wisch	nsin, Sept	ember 10,	1956		
Main channel, surface	20.0	0.174	8.1	0.03	0.75	0.79	127.5

Table 33:-- Texture and organic material content of bottom soils of area B, the adjacent side channel, and the main channel collected October 3, 1955.-

Location	Texture	Percentage of organic material
Area B	Silty clay	7.49
Side channel	Coarse loamy sand	2.64
Main channel	Coarse sand	0.74

1/ Analyses were run at the laboratory of the Minnesota Department of Conservation, Bureau of Research and Planning, St. Paul, Minnesota.

Taile Lis-- Perfoction of bottom famma and etifamma of three Mississippi Haven shoughs near Trempealeau, Alsconsin furing the string periods of 1919 and 1930 and on May Co, 1953...sopressed as average number of organisms ter square meter.4

l'egentere	<u>inthe Si</u> 1919-30		<u>30086</u> 1929-30	Pond 1983	- <del>Tranks</del> 1414-30	Fa <u>r</u> 1953
and a star a		290	50	2 2 3 2 3		5-
Distellante	-		3	9,012		
Jamanaa	=54	-;-2-		517	333	-,709
ligniseta	1,3723	1,155	1,001		1,3	1,311
	5		130	ī		
Bestropode end Relectropode	3,301	173	571		1,551	33
a a unit as a a a a an a a a a an a a			21	- 1	217	
Amplipada	-		30	110	21.3	c5
Depepera			15,010		11,005	3-,117
2200001	135	3,325	ī,ī_0	203		15,253
letrates	p1, 251	3,	_,121		_1,55_	1,123
Flectivers	-	11				11
	-74	1,237	1.1	3,135	303	3,255
Úcoata		-			22	
Dibortera				35	102	1*1 [1]
lines	-,573	531	1,993	1,133	.,570	835
	110		27			
Int plant	ġ,	11	1			11

L Adapted from Upper Lississioni River Monservation Momiltage <u>15</u> -Uriginal taxa signitated of Elgene 4. Surber.

2 Demonsed entirely of an organism tentatively identified as a turbellarian.

almost entirely of the genus <u>Cyclops</u> numerically ranged from 10,599 to 14,117 per souare meter and classoperans from 901 to 05,093 per square meter. The most important genera in the latter group were <u>Cannocamptus</u> and <u>Euryperous</u>. Mayflees primarily of the genus <u>Hexagenca</u> numbered 1,187 to 5,050 per square meter. Between the two sampling periods analysis of the data indicates: 1; a great increase in burrowing mayflies. 1; an increase in the genera <u>Cyclops</u> and <u>Cannocamptus</u> 3) a sharp decrease in corracions, and 4) an appearance of an underthiled organism not observed in the first survey of the abundance of mayflies was noted in area 3 in 1948.

Surbet (53) found portion falma production consistently aigned for the same forms (with the exception) in studies of upper blassissippi Réver sloughs than that reported by Muthkowski (37) and Juday (18) in Lake Mendota and Green Lake, Wisconsin, respectively. Lake Mendota is known to be a heavy producer of film and st can be inferred form this and other information presented above that food production in the upper Mississippi Fiver backwaters attains a level capable of supporting a large lish population.

#### Species composition

The adjusted average percentage complesition of the fish populations by species groups in area 3 mining the 4 years was: 1 predators 27. 2 game fish, 11. 3) parfish, 13. 4 (atfish, 11. 5 forage fish, 1 and portugn ish 35 percent Table 5). In accurtance with the groupings by Carlancer (1955), those species with short intermediate, and long food churds wolld comprise approximately 34. 1 and 44 percent respectively of the average standing crot in area B.

Species with solutified chains have been sound to produce greater standing or ps than produced is first with long food chains (Carlander 12). Thompson (32) suggested that the n gr carrying capacity of Elinetis lakes out attucall of therp coefficient and other non-location or us speciles was due to the short forth that if these speciles. He reported lakes containing these speciles in communation with game and pathese and those narring only game and pathlso to the e proportionately lower tarrying tapacities

A WAS STONE OPPTICAL. THE FLORES OF IS ti far tero to ce present a personanti di ter lower series of the meritals is take of the inter semin Table . 7 Steries . In shirt for these states and the states of neuro anerare of Premero of the total statue ing props of four parkwaters studiet in the er men semte Umer Masseren Pres Dieserato Committee of the solutioners of en annenen erentete of de tertert for area B fearmant of the same the sector and as as CARGAD CONTROL APPROX FRANCING CONTA CAR tiose of the portion term. Considering this a fference in species cumpus fuit inte sierage trul materia cratici area El compares carr fant maan mite ontes in the owner service of the ----

#### Tater-see Surfactor

Tater-le el changes all'old llen populations in several vians d'un limitations of application and llenify manuscion only of doise ellects ordoerned with movement of flat

Figure and an and decenters De 6 Inc 6 7 125 2 Testinge 1 Velet- ete El manes des sees provines et esteral Virales a standar inter it die tolate of fiso per ause AND THE PARTY PARTY PARTY TO THE SAME receller Tanmell 51 Ameria mee in weter L. 1 Secto emotion - St. 4411 Station tert til storm mark and balans ter sore. The centeriage complete no mean of states SALO D'TALI ADIARTETA DESS'AS ATTRACA enter the project of teremotics. But 18 anne a reiter i travita, e prias e reinter Transetter est istart. be pre mitte litzt stealls to inter the paraverer leans (cen t relates

<sup>11</sup> Not shown in the monifier table Table 3, encept that part concerning retraction.

Information of a similar nature was provided by Robert Sharp <u>ll</u> concerning movement of fish into a previously dry rearing pond near the Mississippi River at the National Fish Hatchery, Guttenberg, lowa. Fish had access to the pond after a rise in water level for approximately 2 weeks, during which period 1,240.2 pounds (124 pounds per acre) of fish had entered the area, as shown by subsequent eradication (Table 35). The species comprising the greatest weight were carp, bowfin, buffalo, black crappie, and shortnose gar, in that order. Largemouth bass and black bullheads were also prominent.

Falling water levels during the winter were accompanied by a definite movement out of backwater areas in pools 8 and 9 by carp, northern pike, crappies, spotted sucker, and bowfin (Upper Mississippi River Conservation Committee, <u>63</u>). Movement of these fish was intensified by a sharp drop in the water stage. Conversely, nets set under the ice to block completely the outlet of a backwater lake near La Crosse, Wisconsin, demonstrated only random movement during a 43-day period when only minor water-level fluctuations occurred (Upper Mississippi River Conservation Committee, <u>64</u>).

The catch of gill nets set in and just outside area B approximately 1 week after the 1948 investigation provides further evidence of fish movement into backwater areas from another source (Table 35). This movement cannot be correlated with changes in water level, but it does suggest that backwaters which become de-populated through drawdown or winter-kill are apt to be invaded as soon as suitable conditions are re-established.

Comparison of water levels (Table 37) with population estimates in area B in 1948; 1949, 1951, and 1952 fails to show any relation between water-level fluctuation and standing crop. The greatest short-term changes in level were between 6 PM July 31 and 7 AM August 1, 1949 and between 7 AM and 6 PM August 1, 1949 when a rise of 1.03 feet and a drop of 0.8 feet, respectively, occurred. The highest standing crop was found in the August 3, 1949 operation. In view of previously cited data the sharp rise in water level might account for a large influx of fish, but conversely the more rapid drop (though not as extensive) immediately following would expectedly have initiated egress. Of the 4 years, levels in 1948 prior to poisoning were the most stable, yet production of rough fish, the group purportedly most influenced by water-level change, was second only to that of 1949, while the standing crop of panfish, the group probably least affected, was the lowest of the four estimates.

#### SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS

The objectives of this study were to determine the productivity of and the fluctuations in the populations from year to year, the population structure, and the rate of growth of the common fish species present in backwater areas of the upper Mississippi River. Some of these questions have been more adequately answered than others.

1. Estimates of total fish populations of three upper Mississippi River backwater areas, area A and area B near Fountain City, and Miller Lake near La Crosse, Wisconsin, were obtained between 1947 and 1952 by application of a fish toxicant. Standing crops in one of these areas were determined in 4 different years.

2. Standing crops of fish in the six individual estimates ranged from 39.1 to 604.9 pounds per acre and averaged 248.4 pounds per acre. Deletion of the weight contributed by adult gizzard shad present in only one of the collections reduced the average weight per acre to approximately 225 pounds. This figure is considered to be more indicative of the average population.

3. Standing crops in the backwater treated on four occasions (area B) ranged from 202.4 to 604.9 pounds per acre and averaged 324.2

11/ Personal communication.

Table 35:-- Species composition of fish recovered from a previously dry rearing pond at the U. S. Fishery Station, Guttenberg, Iowa, after recession of high water, May 8, 1951 -- expressed as total numbers and weights and as pounds per acre.

Species	Number	Total number	Weight Pounds	Percentage of
-		of pounds	per acre	total weight
Predators				
Bowfin	106	298.0	29.8	
Shortnose gar	26	26.0	2.6	
	132	324.0	32.4	26.1
Game fish				
Largemouth bass	23	16.0	1.6	
Northern pike	3	1.0	0.1	
Sauger	1	0.5	0.05	
Marreye	30	18 5	1.85	
	20		1.0)	1.7
Panfish	_			
White bass	2	0.7	0.07	
Bluegill	20 151.	5.0	0.5	
Yellow perch	21	3.0	0.3	
T.	205	48.7	4.87	3.9
Plack bullhood	81	10.0		
Stack butinead	81	19.0	1.7 0 r	
	01	±)•0	1.07	1.00
Forage fish				
Golden shiner	26	4.0	0.4	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
	26	4.0	0.4	0.3
Rough fish ,				
Buffalo <u>l</u> /	63	269.0	26.9	
Carp	170	545.0	54.5	×
Carpsucker±'	22	9.0	0.9	
spotted sucker	2-0-0	3.0	0.3	
	250	020.0	02.0	00.0
GRAND TOTAL	732	1,240.2	124.0	

1/ Species not shown in original data.

Species	Number		Size range (inches)
Largemouth bass	l		7.2
Sauger	l		12.2
Black crappie	3	* * * * * * * * * * * * * * *	5.4 - 5.7
White crappie	2		6.3 - 12.4
White bass	2		8.6 - 9.0
Channel catfish	2		12.3 - 13.3
Mooneye	l		10.3
Carp	10		11.6 - 13.2
Spotted sucker	l		17.0
Northern redhorse	<u>L</u>	• • • • • • • • • • • • • •	10.1 - 18.8

Table 36:--Catch of gill nets  $\frac{1}{1}$  lifted within and 50 feet outside of Area B on July 17-18, 1948.

1/ One 2-inch bar mesh and one 4-inch bar mesh net lifted on 2 consecutive days.

Table 37:-- Water-level readings at Fountain City, Wisconsin for 5 days prior to, and for the dates of, eradication of fish in area B in 1948, 1949, 1951, and 1952.1/

Days prior to	1948		1949		19	51	1952	
poisoning	7 a.m.	6 p.m.						
5	650.72	650.65	650.15	650.33	650.51	650.41	649.74	649.66
Ц	50.64	50.64	50.03	49.72	50.35	50.42	49.58	49.55
3	50.62	50.62	49.95	49.32	50.29	50.18	49.68	49.72
2	50.52	50.62	50.35	49.55	50.08	49.90	49.81	49.38
l	50.61	50.63	49.69	49.70	49.74	49.95	49.83	49.85
0	50.65		49.65		50.18		49.90	

1/ Data provided by the U. S. Corps of Engineers, St. Paul District.

pounds per acre. Deletion of the adult gizzard shad reduced the average weight per acre to approximately 285 pounds. This figure also is considered to be more indicative of the average population of area B.

4. To facilitate evaluation of the population data the various species were arranged in the following groups: predators, game fish, panfish, catfish, forage fish, and rough fish.

5. On the basis of adjusted average weight per acre of 285 pounds, the mean percentage composition of the various species groups in area B was predators, 27; game fish, 12; panfish, 13; catfish, 11; forage fish, 1; and rough fish, 38. On the same basis, average composition in pounds per acre was: predators, 77; game fish, 29; panfish, 36; catfish, 30; forage fish, 2; and rough fish, 112.

6. Average standing crops of the three northern backwaters and of area B alone were less than the mean weight per acre of four backwater areas in the southern section of the river but the predator and game fish components were greater in the upper section.

7. The average standing crop of areas A and B and Miller Lake exceeded that of inland waters to the north, approximated that of waters in the same general latitude, and was less than the mean crop of inland waters to the south.

8. The preponderance of species with long food chains suggests that total standing crops with the existing species composition are comparatively high for the latitude.

9. Production of game fish in area B tended to exceed that in most waters of the north-central States where comparison was made. Weight per acre of panfish in the same area tended to approximate that in northern inland waters but was much less than that in waters to the south.

10. The most prominent species in the backwaters in each of the species groups were:
i) predators -- bowfin; 2) game fish -- northern pike and largemouth bass; 3) panfish -- bluegill,

black crappie, white crappie; 4) catfish -channel catfish; 5) forage fish -- gizzard shad; and 6) rough fish -- carp, spotted sucker, and freshwater drum.

11. Weight composition by species groups in area B varied greatly from year to year. The most stable component of the populations was the catfish group while the rough fish group was the most variable.

12. Very few fish over 5 years of age were found in the four collections from which fish were aged. The great majority of game fish and panfish were less than 3 years old.

13. Growth rates of most species were faster than those of the same species in almost all waters of the north-central States where a comparison was made, including the Illinois-Missouri section of the river.

i4. Results of water analyses indicated that chemical fertility of the upper Mississippi River is high when compared to that of other waters producing heavy crops of fish.

15. Bottom soils of the backwater areas have a higher organic content (7.49 percent) than those of adjacent running channels (2.64 percent) and also a finer texture.

16. Composition of the bottom fauna in the backwaters of the upper Mississippi River has changed since the navigational locks and dams were installed but production per unit area compares favorably with that observed hefore installation of those structures.

17. Differences in standing crops in area B during the 4 years could not be related to changes in water level.

#### ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

The authors appreciate Dr. Raymond E. Johnson's assistance in detailed identification of fish and in field work, Dr. John Greenbank's supervision of much of the early general field work, Dr. John B. Moyle's identification of aquatic plants, and to Mr. John Dobie's cooperation in running bottom soil and water analyses. Appreciation is also tendered to Mr. Glenn Voskuil who assisted in preparation of the illustrations, and to other personnel who assisted in the field work.

#### REFERENCES

- Appelget, John G., and Lloyd L. Smith, Jr. 1951. The determination of age and rate of growth from vertebrae of the channel catfish, Ictalurus lacustris punctatus. Transactions American Fishery Society, Vol. 80(1950), pp. 119-139.
- Bailey, Reeve M. 1951. A check-list of the fishes of lowa, with keys for identification. In: Iowa fish and fishing. Iowa Conservation Commission. pp. 187-238.
- Barnickol, Paul G. and William C. Starrett. 1951. Commercial and sport fishes of the Mississippi River between Caruthersville, Missouri, and Dubuque, Iowa. BulletIn, Illinois Natural History Survey, Vol. 25, Art. 5, pp. 267-350.
- Beckman, William C. 1949. The rate of growth and sex ratio for seven Michigan fishes. Transactions American Fishery Society, Vol. 76(1946), pp. 63-81.
- Bennett, George W. 1937. The growth of the large mouthed black bass, <u>Huro salmoides</u> (Lacopede), in the waters of Wisconsin. Copeia, No. 2, pp. 104-118.
- o. 1945. Overfishing in a small artificial lake. Bulletin Illinois Natural History Survey, Vol. 23, Art. 3, pp. 373-406.
- 1948. Lake management reports. 5. Winterkill of fishes in an Illinois lake. Illinois Natural History Survey, Biological Notes No. 19, 9 pp.
- Butler, Robert Lee, and Lloyd L. Smith, Jr. 1950. The age and rate of growth of the sheepshead, Aplodinotus grunniens

Rafinesque, in the upper Mississippi River navigation pools. Transactions American Fishery Society, Vol. 79(1949), pp.43-54.

9. Carlander, Kenneth D.

1950a. Growth rate studies of saugers,
Stizostedion canadense canadense (Smith)
and yellow perch, Perca flavesceus
(Mitchill) from Lake of the Woods,
Minnesota. Transactions American
Fishery Society, Vol. 79(1949), pp. 30-42.

- 10. 1950b. Handbook of freshwater fishery biology. Wm. C. Brown Company, Dubuque, lowa. 281 pp.
- 11. 1951. An unusually large population of fish in a gravel pit lake. Proceedings lowa Academy of Sciences, Vol. 58, pp. 435-440.
- 12. 1955. The standing crop of fish in lakes. Journal Fisheries Research Board of Canada, Vol. 12, No. 4, pp. 543-570.
- Carlander, Kenneth D., and Lloyd L. Smith, Jr. 1944. Some uses of nomographs in fish growth studies. Copeia, 1944, No. 3, pp. 157-162.
- Dobie, John.
   1953. Walleye pike ponds, 1952. Minnesota Fisheries Research Unit, Investigations Report No. 136, 18 pp.
- 15. Eddy, Samuel, and Kenneth D. Carlander. 1942. Growth rate studies of Minnesota fish. Minnesota Department of Conservation, Fisheries Research Investigations Report No. 28, 64 pp.
- 16. Engene, Selmer A., and George A. Pond. 1940. Agricultural production and types of farming in Minnesota. University of Minnesota Agricultural Experiment Station, Bulletin No. 347, 70 pp.
- 17. English, Thomas S.
   1952. Growth studies of the carp, Cyprinus carpio Linnaeus, in Clear Lake, Iowa.
   Iowa State College Journal of Sciences, Vol. 26, No. 4, pp. 527-540.

- Erickson, James G.
   1952. Age and growth of the black and white crapples, <u>Pomoxis nigro-maculatus</u> (Le Sueur) and <u>P. annularis Rafinesque</u>, in Clear Lake, Iowa. lowa State College, Journal of Science, Vol. 26, No. 3, pp. 491-505.
- Eschmeyer, H. W. 1943. Fish population of a small Norris Reservoir bay. Journal, Tennessee Academy of Sciences, Vol. 18, No. 1, pp. 47-48.
- 20. Hansen, Donald F. 1951. Biology of the white crapple in Illinois. Bulletin, Illinois Natural History Survey, Vol. 25, Art. 4, pp. 211-265.
- Hennemuth, Richard C. 1955. Growth of crappies, bluegill, and warmouth in Lake Ahquabi, Iowa. Iowa State College, Journal of Science, Vol. 30, No. 1, pp. 119-137.
- 22. Johnson, Wendell L. 1945. Age and growth of the black and white crappies of Greenwood Lake, Indiana. Investigation of Indiana Lakes and Streams, Vol. 2, No. 15, pp. 297-324.
- 23. Juday, Chancey. 1924. Summary of quantitative investigations on Green Lake, Wisconsin. Internat. Rev. der Ges. Hydrobiol. und Hydrog., Bd. 12, Heft 1-2, pp. 1-12.
- 24. 1938. Fish records for Lake Wingra. Transactions, Wisconsin Academy of Science, Arts, and Letters, Vol. 31, pp. 533-534.
- 25. Kelley, D. W. 1953. Fluctuation in trap net catches in the upper Mississippi River. U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, Special Scientific Report. Fisheries No. 101, 38 pp.
- Kuehn, Jerome H. 1949. Statewide average total length in inches at each year. Minnesota Fisheries

Research Laboratory, Supplement to Investigational Report No. 51 (second revision), 2 pp.

- Lewis, William M. 1950a. Fisheries investigations on two artificial lakes in southern Iowa. 2. Fish populations. Iowa State College Journal of Science, Vol. 24, No. 3, pp. 287-324.
- 28. 1950b. Growth of the white bass, Lepibema chrysops (Rafinesque) in Clear Lake, Iowa. Iowa State College Journal of Science, Vol. 24, No. 3, pp. 273-277.
- Mackenthun, Kenneth M. 1946. A preliminary report on the age, growth, and condition factor of southern Wisconsin fishes. Wisconsin Conservation Department, Fishery Biological Investigational Report No. 574, 22 pp. (mimeo).
- 1947. Age and growth of southern Wisconsin bluegills, Lepomis macrochirus. Wisconsin Conservation Bulletin, Vol. 12, No. 5, pp. 20-23.
- 31. McMiller, P. R. 1947. Principal regions of Minnesota. University of Minnesota Agricultural Experiment Station, Bulletin No. 392, 48 pp.
- 32. Meehean, O. Lloyd. 1932. The structure of scales in relation to the life histories of certain fish from the sloughs of the Upper Mississippi Wild Life and Fish Refuge. M. S. thesis, Univ. of Minnesota, 86 pp.
- Moyle, John B. 1949. Some indices of lake productivity. Transactions American Fishery Society, Vol. 76(1946), pp. 322-334.
- 34. 1952. Age and growth of fishes. <u>In:</u> Minnesota lakes, fish and fishing. Minnesota Conservation Volunteer, Vol. 15, No. 86, pp. 14-17.

- 34a. Moyle, John B., Jerome H. Kuehn, and Charles R. Burrows.
  1950. Fish population and catch data. Transactions American Fisheries Society, Vol. 78(1948), pp. 163-175.
- 35. Moyle, John B., and Neil Hotchkiss. 1945. The aquatic and marsh vegetation of Minnesota and its value to waterfowl. Minnesota Department of Conservation, Technical Bulletin No. 3, 122 p<sub>F</sub>.
- 36. Mraz, Donald, and C. W. Threinen. 1952. Fish population and standing crop of Potter's Lake. Wisconsin Conservation Department, Area V Fish. Biol. Invest. Memo. No. 128, 23 pp. (Typewritten).
- 37. Muttkowski, Richard A. 1918. The fauna of Lake Mendota. Transactions Wisconsin Academy of Science, Arts, and Letters, Vol. 19, Part 1, pp. 374-482.
- 38. Neess, John C. 1949. Development and status of pond fertillzation in central Europe. Transactions American Fisheries Society, Vol. 76(1946), pp. 335-358.
- 39. O'Donnell, D. John. 1943. The fish population in three small lakes in northern Wisconsin. Transactions American Fisheries Society, Vol 72 (1942), pp. 187-196.
- 40. Peterson, Arthur. 1955. Fish populations of five small northern Minnesota lakes as determined by rotenone poisoning and netting. Minnesota Fisheries Research Unit, Investigational Report No. 153, 6 pp. (mimeo.).
- Platner, Wesley S. 1946. Water quality studies of the MississIppi River. U. S. Flsh and Wildlife Service, Special Scientific Report No. 30, 77 pp.
- 41a. Ricker, William E.1942. The rate of growth of blu gill sunfish in lakes of northern Indiana.

Indiana Department of Conservation, Investigation of Indiana Lakes and Streams, Vol. 2, No. 11, pp. 161-214.

- 42. Ricker, William E., and Karl F. Lagler 1942. The growth of spiny-rayed fishes in Foots Pond. Indiana Department of Conservation, Indiana Investigation of Lakes and Streams, Vol. 2, No. 5, pp. 85-97.
- 43. Roach, Lee S., and Irene H. Evans.
  1947. Fish management reports. Growth of game and panfish in Ohio. 1. Bluegells.
  Ohlo Division of Conservation, 26 pp.
- 44. 1948. Fish management reports. Growth of game and panfish in Ohio. 2. Crappies. Ohio Division of Conservation. 29 pp.
- 45. Ruhr, C. E. 1952. Fish population of a mining pit lake, Marion Count, Jowa. Iowa State College Journal of Science, Vol. 27, No. 3, pp. 55-77.
- 46. Sigler, William F. 1949a. Life history of the white bass in Storm Lake, lowa. Iowa State College Journal of Science, Vol. 23, No. 4, pp. 311-316.
- 47. 1949b. Life history of the white bass, Lepibema chrysops (Rafinesque), of Spirit Lake, Iowa. Iowa Agricultural Experiment Station Research Bulletin No. 366, pp. 203-244.
- 48. Smith, Lloyd L., Jr.
  1949 Methods for lake and stream survey.
  University of Minnesota Division of Entomology and Economic Zoolegy, 54 pp.
- Smith, Lloyd L., Jr., and Norman L. V. e. 1944. Minnesota fish facts. Minnes & Department of Conservation, Conservation Bulletin No. 7, 31 pp.
- 50. Solman, V. E. F.
  1950. Ilistory and use of fish poisons
  the United States. The Canadian Hish Culturist, No. 8, pp. 3-16.

- 51. Speaker, E.B. 1948. A fish population study of an artificial lake. Proceedings, Iowa Academy of Sciences, Vol. 55, pp. 437-444.
- 52. Surber, Eugene W. 1929a. The utilization of sloughs in the upper Mississippi wildlife and fish refuge as fish ponds. Transactions American Fisheries Society, Vol. 59, pp. 106-113.
- 53. 1929b. The bottom fauna and plankton as food of the smaller slough fishes in the Upper Mississippi Wildlife Refuge. M.S. thesis, University of Minnesota, 96 pp.
- 54. MS. Biological, chemical, and ichthyologlcal investigation of sloughs of the upper Mississippi River
- 55. Swingle, H. S., and E. V. Smith. 1939. Fertilizers for increasing the natural food for fish in ponds. Transactions American Fisheries Society. Vol. 68(1935), pp. 126-135.
- 56. 1941. The management of ponds for the production of game and panfish. In: A symposium of hydrobiology. University of Wisconsin Press, Madison, pp. 218-226.
- 57 Tarzwell, Clarence M. 1942 Cish topulations in the backwaters of Wireller Reservoir and suggestions for their managment. Transactions American Fisheries Society, Vol. 7I(1941), pp. 201-214.
- 58. 1945. The possibilities of a commercial fishery in the TVA impoundment and its value in solving the sport and rough fish problems. Transactions American Fisheries Society, Vol. 73(1943), pp. 137-157.
- 59. Thompson, David H. 1941. The fish production of inland streams and lakes. In: A symposium of hydrobiology. University of Wisconsin Press, Madison, pp. 206-217.

- Thompson, David H., and George W. Bennett. 1939. Lake management reports. 3. Lincoln Lakes near Lincoln, Illinois. Illinois Natural History Survey, Biological Notes No. 11, 24 pp.
- 61. Threinen, C. W., and William T. Helm. 1952. Composition of the fish population and carrying capacity of Spauldings Pond, Rock County, as determined by rotenone treatment. Wisconsin Conservation Department, Investigational Report No. 656, 19 pp. (mimeo.).
- 62. Upper Mississippi River Conservation Committee.
  1946. Second progress report of the Technical Committee for Fisheries.
  In: Proceedings Second Annual Meeting.
  26 pp.
- 63. 1947. Third progress report of the Technical Committee for Fisherles. In: Proceedings Third Annual Meeting. 63 pp
- 64. 1948. Fourth progress report of the Technical Committee for Fisheries.
   In: Proceedings Fourth Annual Meeting.
   34 pp.
- 65. 1954. Tenth progress report of the Technical Committee for Fisheries. In: Proceedings Tenth Annual Meeting. pp. 28-46.
- 66. Van Oosten, John. 1938. The age and growth of the Lake Erie sheepshead, <u>Aplodinotus</u> <u>grunniens</u> Rafinesque. Papers, Michigan Academy of Science, Arts, and Letters, Vol. 23 (1937), pp. 651-668.
- 67. 1948. Turbidity as a factor in the decline of Great Lakes fishes with special reference to Lake Erie. Transactions American Fisheries Society, Vol. 75(1945), pp. 261-322.
- 68. Wood, Roy.

1951. The significance of managed water levels in developing the fisheries of large impoundments. Journal, Tennessee Academy of Sciences, Vol. 26, No. 3, pp. 214-235.





POSTAGE AND FEES PAID U. S. DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR

LIBRARY 135 WOODS HOLE MASS

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR FISH AND WILDLIFE SERVICE BUREAU OF SPORT FISHERIES AND WILDLIFE WASHINGTON, D. C. 20240